
Summons to Meeting

Friday 11 August 2017

Development Panel
Tuesday 22 August 2017, 1.00 pm

Council Chamber, Allerdale House
Membership:

Councillor Peter Bales (Chair) Councillor Billy Miskelly (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Carole Armstrong Councillor Nicky Cockburn
Councillor Adrian Davis-Johnston Councillor Janet Farebrother
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Mark Jenkinson
Councillor Ron Munby Councillor Jim Osborn
Councillor Bill Pegram Councillor David Wilson

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Dean Devine on 01900 702556.

Agenda
1. Minutes of meeting Tuesday 25 July 2017 of Development Panel  (Pages 1 - 

26)

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from Councillors and members of the public – submitted in 
writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the 
meeting.



5. 2/2017/0255 - Land at New Bridge Road, Workington - Erection of 
pub/restaurant (Class A3/A4) with associated living accommodation, car 
parking and landscaping, new access road, temporary site access and 
compound  (Pages 27 - 38)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
57967

6. 2/2017/0283 - Moorhouse, Greengill, Aspatria - Change of use to provide 
camping site - Retrospective  (Pages 39 - 48)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
58535

7. 2/2017/0365 - Mill Barn, Wiggonby - Proposed affordable dwelling  (Pages 
49 - 58)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
60930

8. 2/2017/0005 - Grahams Garage, Prospect - Demolition of commercial 
buildings and residential development of up to 20 dwellings - 
Resubmission of application 2/2016/0059  (Pages 59 - 78)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
52298

9. 2/2017/0291 - Fair View, Winscales - Construction of two new 
dwellinghouses  (Pages 79 - 88)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
58699

10. HOU/2017/0056 - Replacement of front and rear doors with flood resistance 
doors - 38 Challoner Street, Cockermouth  (Pages 89 - 96)
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=1
55110

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Tuesday 19 September 2017, 1.00 pm
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=157967
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=157967
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=158535
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=158535
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=160930
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=160930
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=152298
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=152298
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=158699
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=158699
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=155110
http://planning.allerdale.gov.uk/portal/servlets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=155110


At a meeting of the Development Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale House on 
Tuesday 25 July 2017 at 1.00 pm

Members

Councillor Peter Bales (Chair) Councillor Billy Miskelly (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Carole Armstrong Councillor Nicky Cockburn
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Mark Jenkinson
Councillor Ron Munby Councillor Jim Osborn
Councillor Bill Pegram Councillor David Wilson

Apologies for absence were received from A Davis-Johnston and J Farebrother

Staff Present

B Carlin, K Kerrigan, S Long and K Magnay

69. Minutes , 27/06/2017 Development Panel 

Councillor M Jenkinson requested an amendment to be made on Page 32 from 
Councillor B Jenkinson to Councillor M Jenkinson.

The minutes were then agreed by members.

70. Declaration of Interests 

None received.

71. Questions 

None received. 

72. 2/2015/0670 - Erection of four single storey dwellings-Beaulands, 
Ellerbeck Lane, Workington 

Representations

Mr Peter McHarry spoke in objection to the application.
Mr J R Wall read out a letter on behalf of Bill Ellwood in objection to the 
application.
Steve Carruthers spoke in objection to the application.
Robert Johnston spoke in objection to the application.
Robert Johnston read out a letter on behalf of Mr Walsh in objection to the 
application.
Mr J R Wall spoke in objection to the application.

The Agents Richard Evans and Geoff Hamilton spoke in support of the 
application.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended approval.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Principle of Development

The principle of residential development at this location is deemed
acceptable and the proposal is considered to be compliant with the
provisions of policies S2, S3 and S5 of the Allerdale Local Plan
(Part 1).

 Scale, design and residential amenity

Officers are satisfied that acceptable levels of privacy and amenity are 
achieved for both the proposed and existing dwellings. Potential issues 
regarding amenity and overlooking have been addressed by the 
submission of revised plans re-orientating the dwellings. Furthermore, 
the proposed houses are all single storey in character and set down into 
the sloping landscape.

 Landscape and visual impact

The development is small in scale and the proposed design and layout 
reflects the character of the surrounding residential area. The proposal 
would not have an adverse impact on the streetscene or visual amenity 
of the surrounding area. Officers also consider that sufficient amenity 
space is proposed and there is scope to enhance the existing hedging 
and planting along the boundaries of the site.

 Highway issues and car parking

Vehicular access is proposed via Ellerbeck Lane, and within the curtilage 
of each dwelling there is a minimum of 2 parking spaces plus turning 
areas. The Highways Authority is satisfied with the proposed access and 
parking arrangements and recommends 
Conditional approval regarding visibility splays.

 Drainage and flooding

Allerdale has commissioned WYG to carry out a review of the drainage 
strategy that has been submitted for the planning application. This is to 
consider the full drainage strategy that accompanies the application. 
Issue 2 of the ‘Drainage Strategy Report’ was submitted in January 2017. 
United Utilities and Cumbria County Council have also been consulted 
on the drainage details and they recommend Conditional Approval. Foul 
water is to be disposed to the public main sewer and due to the sloping 
nature of the site this will need to be pumped for dwellings 2, 3 & 4 from 
a station located to the north of the site. The surface water from the 
proposed hard standings will drain through permeable surfacing, with the 

Page 2



roof water to be attenuated to a rate not exceeding 5 litres per second. 
This will then be disposed to the combined public sewer.

 Heritage

It is not considered that there would be an adverse impact on heritage 
assets, and the site is not located in a conservation area.

 Ecology 

A Bat Risk Assessment has been submitted with the planning application 
and mitigation measures can be conditioned on any planning approval. In 
addition the existing hedgerows are proposed to be retained and 
additional planting of native species is proposed. This can also be 
secured by planning conditions.

Additional Note to applicant:

The proposed management and maintenance arrangements for the drainage 
system to be submitted in connection with condition 13 should include details of 
a flow detection monitor or other means of providing automatic notification of 
system failures to the management/maintenance company.

Section plan CC to be omitted from the list of the approved drawings under 
condition 2.

Members were minded to approve subject to confirmation from Secretary of 
State as to whether to call the application in. (Confirmation subsequently 
received from the Secretary of State on 27 July 2017 that it was not being called 
in and that the local planning authority may issue its decision)

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor B Miskelly moved approval as per the officer’s recommendation, with 
the additional note referring to the details to be submitted in connection with 
condition 13 for the arrangements for fault notification.
 
Councillor C Armstrong seconded.

A vote was taken; 6 voted in favour of approval, 5 against.

The motion in favour of approval was carried.

Decision

Approved

Page 3



Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in 
accordance with the following plans: 
Proposed site plan 14087-09F;
Site sections (Revised to remove terrace to the rear of Plot 4);
House types 14087-10E;
Proposed Site Drainage Layout C-0700-01 Rev A;
Proposed Exceedance Route (Plot 4) C-0700-01-EX 

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-
material alterations to the scheme are properly considered.

3. No dwelling shall be occupied until any parking spaces, garages 
and turning areas associated with them have been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, the parking and 
turning areas provided shall not be used for any purpose other than 
the parking and turning of vehicles.

Reason : To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made 
and retained for use in relation to the development, in compliance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S22 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be constructed 
above plinth level until details and representative samples of all 
external and roofing materials have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The materials so 
approved shall be used in the development as approved. 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development for the 
external appearance of the approved scheme which is compatible with 
the character of the surrounding area, in compliance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be constructed 
above plinth level until details of the treatment and finishes of all 
surfaces within the site have been submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. The details so approved shall be 
completed prior to the use of the development hereby approved 
being occupied and shall be retained at all times thereafter.

Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory standard of development for 
the external appearance of the approved scheme in relation to its 

Page 4



surroundings, in compliance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Policy DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

6. Details of the siting, height and type of all means of 
enclosure/screen walls/fences/other means of enclosure shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the occupation of any dwelling(s). Any such walls/fences etc shall 
be constructed prior to the approved building being brought into 
use/occupied. All means of enclosure so constructed shall be 
retained and no part thereof shall be removed without the prior 
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development which is 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area and safeguard the 
amenity of neighbouring properties.

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be built above 
ground level until there has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping 
(including the proposed bunding) which shall include indications of 
all existing trees and shrubs on the site, and details of any to be 
retained, together with measures for the protection in the course of 
development. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised within the 
scheme shall be carried out in the first planting season following 
completion of the development, and any trees or plants which 
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with other similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and 
minimise the impact of the development in the locality.

8. No development approved by this permission shall commence until 
a desktop study has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. Should the preliminary risk assessment identify 
any potential contamination which may affect human health, 
controlled waters or the wider environment, all necessary site 
investigation works within the site boundary must be carried out to 
establish the degree and nature of the contamination and its 
potential to pollute the environment or cause harm to human health. 
The scope of works for the site investigations should be agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority prior to their commencement. 

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising 
from any possible contamination from the development to the local 
environment, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Page 5



9. Should land affected by contamination be identified under the desk 
top study under condition 8 be found which poses unacceptable 
risks to human health, controlled waters or the wider environment, 
no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of 
remediation options, identification of the preferred option(s), the 
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, and a 
description and programme of the works to be undertaken 
including the verification plan. 

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising 
from any possible contamination from the development to the local 
environment, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

10.Should a contamination remediation scheme be required under 
condition the approved strategy shall be implemented and a 
verification report submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, prior to the development (or relevant 
phase of development) being brought into use.

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising 
from any possible contamination from the development to the local 
environment, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

11. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 
out the approved development that was not previously identified it 
must be reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. 
Development on the part of the site affected must be halted and a 
risk assessment carried out and submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where unacceptable risks 
are found remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
shall be implemented prior to the development (or relevant phase of 
development) being brought into use. All works shall be undertaken 
in accordance with current UK guidance, particularly CLR11. 

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination 
from the development to the local environment in compliance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

12.No development shall take place until a Construction Method 
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The statement shall include the following:
(a) Traffic Management Plan to include all traffic associated with the 
development, including site traffic, off site parking, turning and 
compound areas;
(b) Procedure to monitor and mitigate noise and vibration from the 
construction and demolition and to monitor any properties at risk of 

Page 6



damage from vibration, as well as taking into account noise from 
vehicles, deliveries. All measurements should make reference to 
BS7445;
(c) Mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts on residential
properties from construction compounds including visual impact, 
noise and light pollution;
(d) A written procedure for dealing with complaints regarding the 
construction or demolition;
(e) Measures to control the emissions of dust and dirt during 
construction and demolition;
(f) Programme of work for Demolition and Construction phase;
(g) Hours of working and deliveries;
(h) Details of lighting to be used on site.
The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
duration of the development.

Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenity of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties during the construction works of the 
development hereby approved, in compliance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy S32 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

13.Prior to commencement of development, details of a schedule for 
the future management and maintenance of the approved foul and 
surface water drainage shall submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include 
measures for the long term maintenance of the drainage system, 
with particular details in relation to the proposed attenuation, the 
combined pumping station and its rising main. The approved 
drainage system shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation 
of any dwelling and shall be maintained at all times thereafter in 
accordance with the approved schedule.

Reason : To ensure a sustainable means of drainage from the site and 
minimise the risk of water pollution to the local water environment, in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 
and S29 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

14.No development shall commence until a construction surface water 
management plan, including details of the maintenance 
arrangements, has been agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. The surface water drainage system shall thereafter be 
maintained in accordance with the approved details during the 
timescale of the construction works.

Reason : To safeguard against flooding to surrounding sites and to 
safeguard against pollution of watercourses downstream of the site.

15.The development of plot 1 shall not commence until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility of 60 metres measured 2.4 metres down 
the centre of the access road and the nearside channel line of the 
major road have been provided at the junction of the access road 

Page 7



with the county highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order) relating to 
permitted development, no structure, or object of any kind shall be 
erected, parked or placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall 
be planted or be permitted to grow within the visibility splay which 
obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be 
constructed before general development of the site commences so 
that construction traffic is safeguarded.

Reason : In the interests of highway safety.

16.No trees or hedgerows on the site shall be topped, lopped, felled or 
uprooted without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority, 
and any which are removed shall be replaced with an appropriate 
size and species during the first planting season afterwards to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason : In order to ensure that adequate protection is afforded to the 
existing trees/hedgerow on the site.

17.The mitigation measures outlined in the Bat Risk Assessment by 
‘Elliott Environmental Surveyors Ltd’ Revision No. R02, to reduce 
the potential impact on bats, shall be fully implemented during the 
construction of the development.

Reason : To safeguard the habitat of bats in compliance with the 
NationalPlanning Policy Framework and the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) 
2014.

18.Nothwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) no external alterations or additions shall be made to 
any dwelling and its roof hereby approved and no buildings, 
extensions, gates, fences or walls (other than those expressly 
authorised by this permission) shall be carried out within the 
curtilage of any dwelling without the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority upon an application submitted to it.

Reason : The Local Planning Authority wishes to retain control over any 
proposed alterations/extensions in the interests of the appearance of the 
site and safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties.

19.The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried 
out in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Drainage 
Strategy Report, ref: C-0700, Issue 2, dated 6th January 2017 by 
Hamilton Technical Services. For the avoidance of doubt and 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
the combined flow from the whole development site should drain to 
the combined sewer at the restricted rate of max 5 I/s. The 

Page 8



development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
details. 

Reason : To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an 
undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding.

20.The access and parking / turning requirements shall be 
substantially met before any building work commences on site so 
that construction traffic can park and turn clear of the highway.

Reason: The carrying out of this development without the provision of 
these facilities during the construction work is likely to lead to 
inconvenience and danger to road users.

73. 2/2016/0657 - Residential development of 69 dwellings and associated 
infrastructure - Land North East of Coachman Inn, Seaton, Workington. 

Representations

Michael Wilkinson spoke in objection to the application.
Steve Long, The Principal Planning Officer read out a letter from Gemma 
Hannah in objection to the application.

Steve Long, The Principal Planning Officer read out a letter from Councillor 
Celia Tibble as Ward Councillor.

The Agents Adam McNally, Matthew Swallow and Darren Staff spoke in support 
of the application.

Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended approval.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Principle of Development

Seaton is designated as part of the Principal Service centre of 
Workington under the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) and which is intended 
to be the focus for major new development in Allerdale accommodating 
35% of the overall housing growth over the plan period. Policy S5 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan Part 1 (ALPP1) states that new development will be 
concentrated within the physical limits of the Principal Service Centre. 
The proposed development site lies outside of, but directly adjacent to, 
the defined settlement limit for Seaton. Notwithstanding the adoption of 
the ALPP1 and the spatial strategy contained therein, the defined limits 
for individual settlements continue to be derived from the Allerdale Local 
Plan 1999. The LPA is currently in the process of reviewing settlement 
limits as part of the site allocations process but this development plan 
document, Allerdale Local Plan (Part 2), is still in the process towards 
adoption. The council can demonstrate a 5-year supply of housing and 

Page 9



therefore the policies for supply of housing contained within the adopted 
Local Plan are to be considered up-to-date. Taking into account the age 
of the current defined settlement limits and also principles of sustainable 
development set out within the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), officers consider that an element of flexibility must be applied 
when considering proposals for development that lie outside of them and 
this proactive approach to meeting the overall housing requirement for 
Allerdale has previously been accepted by the Development Panel as 
appropriate. Given the scale of development proposed and the proximity 
and relationship of the site to the current defined settlement and 
proposed site allocation officers consider the principle of residential 
development to be acceptable at this location.

 Impact on Highway Network

No objections are raised by the local highway authority in relation to the 
proposed access arrangements for the site or the impact of the proposed 
development on the highway network in the locality. The Highways 
Authority has requested a number of conditions be attached to provide 
adequate infrastructure and ensure a safe walking route is provided. 
Officers conclude that the proposed development would not have a 
significant adverse impact on the local highway network and therefore is 
compliant with the provisions of Policies S2, S5 and S22 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1).

 Parking

The Highways Authority has not objected to the level of parking 
provision, officers consider the proposal meets current parking standards 
set out by Cumbria County Council.

 Affordable Housing

The proposed outline scheme would see 13 affordable units which 
represent 20% of the scheme. Although there is no provision of 
affordable rental properties a viability assessment has concluded that 
there would be a reduction in affordable units if affordable rental units 
were to be provided. Officers consider this is in line with the provisions of 
Policy S8 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1).

 Landscape and Visual Impact

Officers consider that although the proposal may result in changes to the 
immediate landscape, the development when viewed from long range 
views would be seen in the context of the existing built development of 
Seaton. Officers conclude that the proposed development is in line with 
the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and would not have a 
significant adverse impact on landscape character and visual amenity 
and therefore is compliant with the provisions of Policies S32 and S33 of 
the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1).

Page 10



 Trees and Hedgerows

Officers conclude that a proposed layout is achieved that safeguards, 
where possible, existing trees and hedgerows that contribute positively to 
the character of the local area and provide ecological value in 
compliance with the provisions of Policies S33, S35, and DM17 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1).

 Ecology

Officers have considered the standing advice for protected species
referred to in the Natural England response. Based on the information 
and guidance contained therein, officers consider that the proposed 
development would not cause significant harm to protected species that 
may roost, forage or commute within the site. Officers conclude that the 
proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact on 
ecology and therefore is compliant with the provisions of Policies S35 of 
the Allerdale Local Plan (Part1).

 Flood Risk and Drainage 

The applicant has commissioned a Flood Risk Assessment that 
concludes the proposal will not result in any Flood Risk to the site or 
properties within the locality. United Utilities have assessed the proposal 
and consider the proposal to be acceptable subject to conditions. 
Officers conclude that the proposed development would not be liable to a 
high risk of flooding, or exacerbate flood risk elsewhere and the 
development is therefore compliant with the provisions of Policies S2 and 
S29 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1).

 Community Infrastructure 

CCC has estimated that the development would yield 17 primary (7 infant 
and 10 Junior) and 12 secondary school places. Currently the primary 
schools has a capacity for only 7 of the 17 places and therefore the 
development has necessitated the need for a financial contribution in 
terms of the junior school to accommodate the anticipated increase in 
pupils (Seaton Academy and the Workington Academy has sufficient 
places). The applicant has agreed to the total required education 
contribution of £120,510 and has agreed to its inclusion within the 
Section 106 agreement.

 Residential Amenity

The proposal will have some impact on existing properties; however, the 
effects of the development of the amenities of the occupiers of these 
properties are not considered to be significant. The resulting impacts 
would not be significantly harmful in terms of overlooking, 
overshadowing, over-dominance or loss of privacy. The proposal is 
considered to be acceptable in accordance with policies S32 of the 
ALPP1.

Page 11



 Design and Appearance 

The site is located adjacent to a modern housing estate and a smaller 
number of traditional dwellings. The design of the properties and layout is 
considered to be acceptable and is in the form of the standard house 
types of the developer that are utilised on a cross-regional basis. 
However, some of the units have been adapted to incorporate bespoke 
external detailing. These units would incorporate detailing such as stone 
and render elevations.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor M Grainger moved approval as per the officer’s recommendations 
with section 106 agreement in place.

Councillor C Armstrong Seconded.

Councillor M Jenkinson requested an amendment be made for permitted 
development rights to be removed to plots 18, 19 and 20 if the application is 
approved.

Councillor M Grainger moved approval on the amendment.

Councillor C Armstrong Seconded.

Councillor B Pegram requested condition 27 to be changed from occupation to 
completion.

The Head of Planning Services stated completion can mean different things, 
completion of dwelling is not as clear cut where as occupation is. When 
considering enforceability the use of the term occupation may be clearer than 
the term completion.

Councillor D Wilson moved approval with the amendments to condition 27.

The Head of Planning Services advised if the motion was to change and 
Councillor B Pegram to continue with the motion members would need to 
consider the enforceability of the proposed condition.

Councillor B Pegram withdrew his proposal.

A vote was taken; 10 voted in favour of approval, 1 against.

The motion in favour of approval was carried with amendments to permitted 
development rights additional condition added and subject to 106.

Additional Condition

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or in any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 

Page 12



modification) no development falling within Classes B and C of Part 1 of 
Schedule 2 of the said Order shall be carried out in relation to plots 18, 19 
and 20 (Banbury House Type) without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority upon application submitted to it.
Reason: The Local Planning Authority wishes to retain control over any 
proposed alterations/extension in the interests of the appearance of the site and 
safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties. 

Decision

Approved

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in 
accordance with the following plans:
000038-90-9-SL-LP - SL148 Ref 1 - Location Plan
696- STO 100 - Proposed Site Layout Rev I - Amended plan received 
28 March 2017
696- STO 102 - Proposed Elevation Treatments Rev J - Amended 
plan received 30 June 2017
696 STO- 103 - Proposed Boundary Treatments - Rev F - Amended 
plan received 28 March 2017
SH/SC-C/10-01 REV E - Proposed Engineering Layout Sheet 1 of 2 - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SH/SC-C/10-02 REV F - Proposed Engineering Layout Sheet 2 of 2 - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SH/SC-C/12-01 Rev D Sheet 1 of 4 - Proposed External Works – 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SH/SC-C/12-02 Rev D Sheet 2 of 4 - Proposed External Works – 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SH/SC-C/12-03 Rev D Sheet 3 of 4 - Proposed External Works – 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SH/SC-C/12-04 Rev D Sheet 4 of 4 - Proposed External Works – 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
11091-L01 - Landscaping General Arrangement Rev P04 - Amended 
plan received 28 March 2017
11091_L02 - Soft Landscaping Area 1 Rev P04 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
11091_L03 - Soft Landscaping Area 2 Rev P04 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
11091_L04 - Hard Landscape Rev P04 - Amended plan received 28 
March 2017
11091_L05 - Fencing and Furniture Rev P04 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017

Page 13



11091_L06 - Planting Notes Rev P01 - Amended plan received 28 
March 2017
11091.T03 Tree Removal Plan Rev P03 - Amended Plan received 06 
July 2017
11091.T04 Tree Protection Plan Rev P03 - Amended Plan received 
06 July 2017
BD-03 Fence
BD-15- Brick Wall
BD-19 - 0.9m Stone Wall
BD- 20- 1.8m Stone Wall
BD- 31- Estate Railings
SL148 Plot Schedule Rev B - Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SL148/90/12/SF Schedule of Finishes Rev A - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
Materials Schedule - Wall Finishes, Hard Surfaces Finishes, Doors 
and Windows and Roof and Rainwater Goods Finishes
KIN-PLP1- The Kingston Floor Plans 1 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
KIN-PLE1/2- The Kingston Elevations 1/2 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
KIN-PLE1/5 - The Kingston Elevations 1/5 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
HAS-PLP1- The Hastings Floor Plans 1 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
HAS-PLE1/2 - The Hastings Elevations 1/2 Issue v3 Rev A - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
HAS-PLE1/3 - The Hastings Elevations 1/3 Issue v3 Rev A - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
HAS-PLE1/5 - The Hastings Elevations 1/5 Issue v3 Rev A - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
SG1-EPS1 - Garage Plans Elevation, Floor Plans and Sections 1 Rev 
B
SG1-EPS4 - Garage Plans Elevation, Floor Plans and Sections 4 Rev 
B
TAU-PLP1- The Taunton Floor Plans 1 Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
TAU-PLE1/1- The Taunton 1/1 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
TAU-PLE1/6- The Taunton 1/6 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
TAU-PLE1/11- The Taunton 1/11 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
YOR-PLP3- The York Floor Plans Issue 2 - Amended plan received 
28 March 2017
YOR-PLE3/1- The York 3/1 Elevations Issue 2 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
SAL-PLP1- The Salisbury Floor Plans 1 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
SAL-PLE1/4- The Salisbury 1/4 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
SAL-PLE1/11- The Salisbury 1/11 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended 
plan received 28 March 2017

Page 14



BAN-PLP1 - The Branbury Floor Plans 1 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BAN-PLE1/1 - The Branbury 1/1Elevations Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BAN-PLE1/5 - The Branbury 1/5 Elevations Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BAN-PLE1/6 - The Branbury 1/6 Elevations Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 30 June 2017
EPS-PLP2- The Epsom Floor Plans Issue 1 - Amended plan received 
28 March 2017
EPS- PLE2/3 The Epsom 2/3 Elevations Issue 1 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BOS-PLP1- The Boston Floor Plans Issue v4 Rev A - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BOS-PLE1/19 - The Boston 1/19 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BOS-PLE1/21 - The Boston 1/21 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
BOS-PLE1/22- The Boston 1/22 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
CHE-PLP3 - The Chester Floor Plans 3 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
CHE-PLE3/1- The Chester 3/1 Elevations Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
WAR-PLP1- The Warwick Floor Plans Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
WAR-PLE1/6- The Warwick 1/6 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
WAR-PLE1/7- The Warwick 1/7 Elevations Issue v4 – Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
WAR-PLE1/15- The Warwick 1/15 Elevations Issue v4 - Amended 
plan received 28 March 2017
WEL-PLP1- The Wellington Floor Plans 1 Issue v3 - Amended plan 
received 28 March 2017
WEL-PLE1/1- The Wellington 1/1 Elevations Issue v3 Rev A - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
WEL-PLE1/2- The Wellington 1/2 Elevations Issue v3 Rev A - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
WEL-PLE1/5- The Wellington 1/5 Elevations Issue v3 Rev A - 
Amended plan received 28 March 2017
Email dated 24 February 2017 and plan - Route to Secondary School 
- Amended plan received 24 February 2017
TPS Residential Travel Plan dated September 2016
JN1129-Rep-0001.2 Transport Statement dated September 2016
JN1129-Dwg-0007A Proposed Site Access
4131-G-R001 Geoenvironmental Appraisal dated May 2014 - 
Amended plan received 4 January 2017
4131-G-R002 Geoenvironmental & Supplementary Mining Appraisal 
dated February 2016
4131-G-R003 Hazardous Gas Risk Assessment Letter dated 27 
September 2016

Page 15



4131-G-L005 - Shallow Mining Investigation Letter dated 14 October 
2014 - Amended plan received 4 January 2017
P1836 Rev 02 Stage 1 Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage 
Strategy Statement dated December 2015
11091 Issue 2 Arboricultural Report AIA & AMS dated September 
2016
HLS-616/2 Rev Draft 1Road Lighting - Amended plan received 28 
March 2017
SL148.90.9.SL.PL SL148 - Parking Layout - Amended plan received 
28 March 2017
380 Rev 2 - Ecological appraisal dated 30 September 2016
10091/LVA_Rev00 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment dated 
24 March 2016

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-
material alterations to the scheme are properly considered.

3. The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be designed, 
drained and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and in this 
respect further details, including longitudinal/cross sections, shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval before 
any part of the development hereby permitted is commenced. No 
work shall be commenced until a full specification has been 
approved. These details shall be in accordance with the standards 
laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide. Any works so 
approved shall be constructed before the development is 
completed.

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction within the 
approved development in the interests of highway safety.

4. The development shall not commence until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility of 90 metres towards the west and 
120metres towards the north east, measured 2.4 metres down the 
centre of the access road and the nearside channel line of the major 
road have been provided at the junction of the access road with the 
county highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to 
permitted development, no structure, vehicle or object of any kind 
shall be erected or placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall 
be planted or be permitted to grown within the visibility splay which 
exceed 1 metre in height and obstruct the visibility splays. The 
visibility splays shall be constructed before general development of 
the site commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of access for the development 
during the construction and operational use of the site, in compliance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Page 16



5. No dwellings shall be occupied until the estate road including 
footways and cycleways to serve such dwellings has been 
constructed in all respects to base course level and street lighting 
where it is to form part of the estate road has been provided and 
brought into full operational use.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

6. The development shall not commence until the 30mph speed limit 
sign has been extended to a point no less than 90m north west of 
the site access.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

7. Details including traffic calming measures, village gateway signs 
and road markings shall be submitted to and approved by The 
Local Planning Authority prior to the excavation of any foundations 
of a dwelling hereby permitted. No works shall commence in 
respect of any excavation for a foundation of a dwelling hereby 
permitted until the approved 30 mile an hour speed limit been 
implemented and become operational.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

8. Details of proposed crossings of the highway verge and/or footway 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The 
development shall not be commenced until the details have been 
approved and the crossings have been constructed.

Reason: To ensure a suitable standard of crossing for pedestrian safety.

9. No development shall take place until a Construction Method 
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The statement shall include the following:
Traffic Management Plan to include all traffic associated with the
development, including site and staff traffic, off site parking, turning 
and compound areas; 
Procedure to monitor and mitigate noise and vibration from the 
constructionand demolition and to monitor any properties at risk of 
damage fromvibration, as well as taking into account noise from 
vehicles, deliveries. All measurements should make reference to 
BS7445.
Mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts on residential 
properties from construction compounds including visual impact, 
noise, and light pollution.
A written procedure for dealing with complaints regarding the 
construction or demolition;
Measures to control the emissions of dust and dirt during 
construction and demolition (including any wheel washing 
facilities);
Programme of work for Demolition and Construction phase;
Hours of working and deliveries;

Page 17



Details of lighting to be used on site.
Highway signage / Haulage routes
The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
duration of the development.

Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenity of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties during the construction works of the 
development hereby approved and in the interests of highway safety , in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S32 
of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014 and in the 
interests of highway safety.

10.Development shall not be begun until a Construction Method 
Statement including details of all on-site construction works, post-
construction reinstatement, drainage, mitigation, and other 
restoration, together with details of their timetabling has been 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority and shall 
include measures to secure:
formation of the construction compound and access tracks and any 
areas of hardstanding;
cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway;
the sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent 
spillage or deposit of any materials on the highway;
post-construction restoration/reinstatement of the working areas
How surface water will be managed on site during construction

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

11.The Construction Method Statement shall be carried out as 
approved. Development shall not be begun until a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority.
The CTMP shall include details of:
the construction of the site access and the creation, positioning 
and maintenance of associated visibility splays;
access gates will be hung to open away from the public highway no 
less than 10m from the carriageway edge and shall incorporate 
appropriate visibility displays;
proposed accommodation works and where necessary a 
programme for their subsequent removal and the reinstatement of 
street furniture and verges, where required, along the route;
the pre-construction road condition established by a detailed 
survey for accommodation works within the highways boundary 
conducted with a Highway Authority representative;
details of road improvement, construction specification, 
strengthening,
maintenance and repair commitments if necessary as a 
consequence of the development;
retained areas for vehicle parking, manoeuvring, loading and 
unloading for their specific purpose during the development;
the surfacing of the access roads from the public highway into the 
site shall extend for a minimum of 25m;

Page 18



the management of junctions to and crossings of the public 
highway and other public rights of way/footway;
the scheduling and timing of movements, temporary warning signs 
and
banksman/escort details.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

12.An annual report reviewing the effectiveness of the Travel Plan up 
to a period of 5 years and including any necessary amendments or 
measures shall be prepared by the developer/occupier and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. Any 
subsequent amendments or measures approved by the Local 
Planning Authority shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason: To aid in the delivery of sustainable transport objectives.

13.Each dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until its 
respective vehicular access, parking and turning requirements have 
been constructed in accordance with the approved plan and have 
been brought into use. The vehicular access, parking and turning 
provisions shall be retained and capable of use at all times 
thereafter and shall not be removed or altered without the prior 
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of access, parking and turning 
provision when the development is brought into use.

14.The proposed garaging facilities hereby approved shall be retained 
at all times and shall not be used for or converted into habitable 
residential living accommodation without the written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory vehicular parking 
facilities within the application site, in compliance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy S22 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

15.The Gas Assessment concludes that the site in its current state 
should be classified as Characteristic Situation 3(CS3) Hazardous 
Gas. A remediation scheme should be planned in line with 
Proposed Remediation Works recommendations demonstrated in 
ID Report 4131-G-R002 and then onto the proposals in 4131-G-R003. 
No development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of 
remediation options, identification of the preferred option(s), the 
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, and a 
description and programme of the works to be undertaken 
including the verification plan.

Page 19



Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising 
from any possible contamination from the development to the local 
environment in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

16.The remediation scheme required under condition 15, shall be 
implemented and a verification report submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the development 
(or relevant phase of development) being brought into use.

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising 
from any possible contamination from the development to the local 
environment in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

17. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 
out the approved development that was not previously identified it 
must be reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. 
Development on the part of the site affected must be halted and a 
risk assessment carried out and submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Where unacceptable risks are found remediation and verification 
schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to the 
development (or relevant phase of development) being brought into 
use. All works shall be undertaken in accordance with current UK 
guidance, particularly CLR11.

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination 
from the development to the local environment in compliance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014

18.Only foul drainage shall be connected to the public sewer.

Reason: To ensure a sustainable means of drainage from the site and 
minimise the risk of water pollution to the local water environment, in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 
of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

19.The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried 
out in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Flood 
Risk and Drainage Strategy, Ref No. P1836 REV 02, dated December 
2015 which was prepared by Avie Consulting Ltd and the 
drainage/engineering drawings as approved under condition 2. No 
surface water will be permitted to drain directly or indirectly into the 
public sewer. Any variation to the discharge of foul drainage shall 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be not 
occupied until the drainage scheme has been fully constructed in 
accordance with the approved details.

Page 20



Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of surface water drainage and 
minimise the risk of flooding from the development, in compliance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies S29 and S2 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

20.Prior to the occupation of development details of how the approved 
surface water drainage scheme shall be operated, maintained and 
managed after implementation shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The sustainable drainage 
management and maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:
The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or 
statutory undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a 
Resident's Management Company;
Ongoing inspections relating to performance and asset condition 
assessments, regular maintenance, remedial woks and irregular 
maintenance caused by less sustainable limited life assets or any 
other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water 
drainage scheme throughout its lifetime. The development shall be 
completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of surface water drainage and 
minimise the risk of flooding from the development, in compliance with 
the Nationa Planning Policy Framework and Policies S29 and S2 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

21.Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling details of a 
management programme for all areas of public open space 
(including play equipment) and communal parking areas shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
public open spaces and communal parking areas shall upon 
implementation of the permission be thereafter maintained in 
accordance with the approved management programme.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory provision of open space in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies 
S2, S4, S24, S25, S26 and DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

22.A management plan, including management responsibilities and 
maintenance schedules for all private roads, parking courts and 
parking bays that will not form part of the adopted highway, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the occupation of any dwellinghouse hereby 
approved. The development shall thereafter be maintained at all 
times in accordance with the approved management plan.

Reason: To ensure the long term maintenance and management of 
unadopted roads and parking areas within the residential estate.

Page 21



23.All planting, seeding or turfing comprised within the scheme and 
shown on the landscaping plans approved under condition 2 shall 
be carried out in the first planting season following completion of 
the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with other similar size and species, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and 
minimise the impact of the development in the locality, in compliance with 
Policy DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

24.A landscaping management plan including long term design 
objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules for all landscape areas including public open space and 
landscaped buffers shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any 
dwellinghouse hereby approved. The development shall thereafter 
be maintained at all times in accordance with the approved 
management plan.

Reason: To ensure the long term maintenance and management of 
public open space and landscaped buffers within the residential estate.

25.No hedgerows or tree planting to the northern, southern and 
western boundaries of the site as shown as 'existing hedgerow and 
existing trees' on the Landscape General Arrangement drawing 
11091_L01 Rev P04 and as shown in detail on Drawings Soft 
Landscape Area 1 11091_L02 Rev P04 and Drawings Soft 
Landscape Area 2 11091_L03 Rev P04, shall be removed unless 
alternative planting has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and 
minimise the impact of the development in the locality, in compliance with 
Policy DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

26.The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the
recommendations and mitigation measures contained within the 
submitted Arboricultural Report, Rev 2 prepared by Urban Green 
and dated September 2016.

Reason: To ensure that existing trees and hedgerows are protected to an 
appropriate standard during the construction phase of the development 
in accordance with policy DM17 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

27.Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling full details of all play 
equipment to be installed on the local area of play, including its 
siting shall be submitted to and approved be the Local Planning 

Page 22



Authority. The play equipment hereby approved shall be fully 
installed and available prior to the occupation of the final dwelling.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory level of equipment is installed in 
accordance with policies S25 and DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 
1), Adopted July 2014.

28.Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or in any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) no development falling within Classes B and C of Part 
1 of Schedule 2 of the said Order shall be carried out without the 
prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority upon 
application submitted to it.
Reason: The Local Planning Authority wishes to retain control over any 
proposed alterations/extension in the interests of the appearance of the 
site and safeguard the amenities of adjacent properties. 

Councillor M Jenkinson left the meeting  

Councillor M Jenkinson returned to the meeting  

74. 2/2017/0140 - Proposed demolition of existing squash club and erection of 
detached dwelling (resubmission of 2/2013/0827) - Squash Club, 16, 
Senhouse Street , Maryport 

Representations

Councillor Peter Kendall spoke on behalf of Maryport Town Council

S Long, The Principal Planning Officer read out a letter on behalf of Mr Hardon

Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended refusal.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Principle of dwelling

The proposal site lies within the built environment of Maryport and
a new dwelling on this site complies with Policy S3.

 Demolition of the building

Officers consider the materials and design of the building do not
add significantly to the wider character of the local area and it
currently offers no benefits to the wider community. The loss of this
building would not be detrimental on the character of its
surroundings and is acceptable in line with Policy S27.

Page 23



 Replacement of dwelling

The non-traditional design of the proposed dwelling in this elevated
visible position within the Conservation Area does not enhance the
area in which it lies or provide any public benefits which could
outweigh the harm to the heritage assets resulting from this. The
dwelling has not incorporated the character, history and
distinctiveness of its location and the proposal will therefore stand
out when viewed from the harbourside and not integrate well with
the existing development. The proposal is considered to be
contrary to Policies S5, S27, S32 and DM14 of the Allerdale Local
Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

 Structural issues

Insufficient information has been submitted with the application to
demonstrate the erection of a dwelling on this land will not impact
on the existing stone, brick and concrete retaining walls that support the 
site and neighbouring properties.

 Amenity / overlooking

Members considered the design of the building is terms of privacy
as part of the previously application 2/2013/0827 to be acceptable.

 Highway Issues

The site will use the existing access with adequate parking and
turning facilities on site.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor B Miskelly moved refusal as per the officers recommendations. 

Councillor R Munby Seconded.

A vote was taken; 9 voted in favour of refusal, 1 against.
1 abstention.

The motion in favour of refusal was carried.

Decision

Refused 

75. 2/2017/0142 - Listed building consent for the demolition of existing 
squash club - Squash Club, 16, Senhouse Street, Maryport 

Application

The Head of Planning Services recommended to grant approval.

Page 24



The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Demolition of the building

Officers consider the materials and design of the building do not
add significantly to the wider character of the local area and it currently 
offers no benefits to the wider community. The loss of this building would 
not be detrimental on the character of its surroundings and is acceptable 
in line with Policy S27.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor R Munby moved approval to grant as per the officer’s 
recommendation.
 
Councillor M Grainger Seconded.

A vote was taken; 11 voted in favour of approval, 0 against.

The motion in favour of approval was carried.

Decision

Approved

Conditions

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in 
accordance with the following plans:
WO-02-06-13 -Site Location Plan, Block Plan and Elevations

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in 
complete accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-
material alterations to the scheme are properly considered.

3. Within two months from the date of the demolition works the 
exposed gable elevation of 16 Senhouse Street shall be rendered 
and a wet dash finish applied.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development which is 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area.

Councillor M Grainger left the meeting  

Page 25



76. HOU/2017/0056 - Replacement of front and rear doors with flood 
resistance doors - 38, Challoner Street, Cockermouth 

Application

The Principal Planning Officer recommended refusal.

The Principal Planning Officer outlined the application and detailed the main 
issues within the report as follows:

 Proposal

The proposed front door is not of an appropriate design for the
Conservation Area. The benefits offered in terms of the flood
protection measures of the door do not offset the harm the proposal 
would have on the setting of the Conservation Area.

Members noted the representations received in respect of the application, the 
main grounds of which were set out in the report.

Councillor R Munby moved approval. 

Councillor N Cockburn Seconded.

The Head of Planning Services advised if the motion is put forward, the reasons 
need to be recorded. The reason stated was that the public interest outweighs 
any harm to the conservation area.

A vote was taken; 4 voted in favour of approval, 6 against.

The motion in favour of approval was lost.

Councillor C Armstrong moved refusal.

Councillor B Miskelly Seconded.

A vote was taken; 6 voted in favour of refusal, 4 against.

The motion in favour of refusal was carried.

Decision

Refused 

The meeting closed at 4.39 pm

Page 26



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0255

Proposed 
Development:

Erection of pub/restaurant (Class A3/A4) with associated living 
accommodation, car parking and landscaping, new access road, 
temporary site access and compound

Location: Land at
New Bridge Road
Workington

Applicant: Marstons Estates Ltd

Recommendation: APPROVE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
Development

The proposed use as a pub/restaurant is considered to be a ‘town-
centre’ use and as such the application is subject to a sequential 
assessment to discount other available sites within the town 
centre.

A sequential test has been undertaken which has satisfied Officers 
that there are no sequentially preferable sites which can 
accommodate the proposed development and business model.

The family pub/restaurant use is not heavily represented in the 
town. The proposals offer a different family restaurant experience 
with less emphasis on ‘pub culture’ and with the benefit of outside 
space. The proposals are therefore unlikely to compete directly 
with town centre pub/restaurants and unlikely to have any adverse 
impact on town centre vitality and viability.

Siting and Design The building is designed as a generic building that meets the 
business model of the pub/restaurant company. A number of 
amendments have been made at the request of the case officer to 
incorporate some local distinctiveness.

The building is sited central to the site to allow for the entrance 
access and parking area. The amount of parking is considered 
adequate and essential for this type of use at this location The 
scale and massing is considered appropriate and relates well to 
adjacent buildings.

Highway Issues The applicant has undertaken extensive pre-application discussion 
with the Highway Authority. A transport assessment and trip 
analysis has been provided with swept analysis drawings for large 
delivery vehicles.

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



The new access will form a junction with the highway at the foot of 
the road bridge over the river. This access provides adequate 
visibility splays and is supported by the Highway Authority.

A temporary access and associated site compound is planned for 
the duration of the works to serve construction traffic. 

Trip analysis has been provided to show cumulative and 
coincidental vehicle movements between the proposed pub and 
the existing supermarket. This has been accepted by the Highway 
Authority in the interests of assessing potential congestion and 
highway safety.

Standard highway conditions are required for further highway 
construction details and to safeguard the access and parking.

Drainage A drainage strategy has been provided regarding foul and surface 
water. Foul drainage is planned to the main sewer accepted by 
United Utilities

Surface water drainage meets the sequential approach of 
discharge to the River Derwent watercourse with managed 
discharge rates by attenuation. The site is within Flood Zone 1 with 
only a small area nearest the bridge and river bank within Flood 
Zone 2/3.

The Flood Risk Assessment is conclusive that there is no threat of 
flooding at the site or increases risk elsewhere. The Environment 
Agency offers no comment or objection. The Lead Flood Authority 
agrees the surface water drainage strategy with safeguarding 
conditions for implementation and maintenance.

The surface water to the river is not considered to impact upon 
general discharge of the river and the biodiversity will not be 
affected.

Contaminated Land The Desk Top Study and ground investigations have concluded no 
threat to public health from the development with a remediation 
and safeguarding condition regarding unexpected contamination 
considered appropriate.

Trees and 
Landscaping

The temporary access requires the felling of one tree at the 
boundary of the site and part of a small group with little landscape 
impact.

To compensate a comprehensive landscaping scheme 
incorporating remaining trees for the whole site will add to the 
visual appearance of the site and enhance biodiversity.

Biodiversity/River 
Derwent

Natural England has been consulted as the upper reaches of the 
river are designated as a SSSI. They have no objection to general 

Page 28



surface water discharge but have requested a number of mitigating 
measures to prevent river pollution and safeguard wildlife during 
construction.
 
The applicant has provided extensive ecology reports that 
conclude some general habitat potential but with no significant 
harm identified to any species at or near the site. 

Proposal

Application for the erection of a public house/restaurant with associated manager’s living 
accommodation, on-site parking and temporary site access and compound. A new 
permanent access to the site is also planned.
Site

The site comprises undeveloped greenfield land to the north of Tesco adjacent to the 
river Derwent beyond the defined town centre of Workington. The site has a covering of 
grassland and scrub vegetation with some mature trees. A public right of way traverses 
the edge of the site leading to the rugby ground car park and designated as the Cumbria 
Coastal Path. There is an adjacent vehicular access that serves the Tesco delivery 
loading bay from the public highway.

Relevant Policies

NPPF

Building a strong, competitive economy
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Promoting sustainable transport
Requiring good design
Promoting healthy communities

Allerdale Local Plan Part 1 Adopted 2014

Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design
Policy DM8 - Protecting Town Centre Vitality and Viability
Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S21 - Developer contributions (excluding viability)
Policy S22 - Transport principles
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage
Policy S30 - Reuse of Land
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S35 - Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity

Page 29



Policy S36 - Air, water and soil quality  

Relevant Planning History

PPA/2016/0036

Representations

Town Council – No objection in principle subject to satisfactory response from the 
Highway Authority
Highway Authority – No objections with appropriate conditions
Environmental Protection – No objections with standard conditions regarding 
verification of works to safeguard contamination
Natural England – No objections subject to conditions to safeguard biodiversity.
Coal Authority – No objections in principle
Highways England – No objections in principle
Environment Agency – No comment as Flood Zone 1.
Crime Prevention – Standard non mandatory comments regarding building security.

The application has been advertised on site and in the local press. Adjacent landowners 
where known have been notified.

Assessment

Principle of Development

The proposed use as a pub/restaurant is considered to be a ‘town-centre’ use and as 
such the application is subject to a sequential assessment to discount other available 
sites within the town centre in accordance with Policy S16 of the Allerdale Local Plan and 
the National Planning Policy Framework.

A sequential test has been undertaken which has satisfied Officers that there are no 
sequentially preferable sites which can accommodate the proposed development and 
business model.

Fourteen sites within, or edge of town centre have been considered by the applicant 
(Para 4.7 Table 1 Planning and Sequential Statement). The sites considered are 
discounted as being occupied by others, unavailable and not marketed or unsuitable due 
to size or other constraints. A number of the sites considered are out-of-town themselves 
and sequentially similar to the application site.

Consideration has also been given to retail impact from the proposals as the floorspace 
of 718 square metres exceeds the threshold within the Local Plan of 500 square metres. 
Given the use proposed and the type of uses which exist within the town centre, it is 
concluded that no significant adverse impact upon the town centre will result from the 
proposals.

Page 30



The family pub/restaurant use is not heavily represented in the town. The proposals offer 
a different family restaurant experience with less emphasis on ‘pub culture’ and with the 
benefit of outside space. The proposals are therefore unlikely to compete directly with 
town centre pub/restaurants and unlikely to have any adverse impact on town centre 
vitality and viability.

The sequential test and retail impact assessments are considered to be satisfied. The 
proposals by their nature and location adjacent to an existing out-of-town retail site 
(Tesco) and well related to the sporting venue of the rugby ground and speedway are not 
considered to conflict significantly with plan wide policies regarding town centres, 
economic growth and sustainable development.

Siting and Design

The building is designed as a generic building that meets the business model of the 
pub/restaurant company. A number of amendments have been made at the request of 
the case officer to incorporate some local distinctiveness of roofing material and rendered 
elevations. The extensive use of red brick and red roofing material has been removed.

The building is sited central to the site to allow for the entrance access and parking area. 
The amount of parking is considered adequate and essential for this type of use at this 
location The scale and massing is considered appropriate and relates well to adjacent 
buildings.

Manager’s Accommodation

The proposals include a flat for the manager’s use which is typical of a use of this type. A 
planning condition to restrict occupancy for this purpose is considered necessary and 
reasonable.

Highway Issues

The applicant has undertaken extensive pre-application discussion with the Highway 
Authority. A transport assessment, travel plan and trip analysis has been provided with 
swept analysis drawings for large delivery vehicles.

The new access will form a junction with the highway at the foot of the road bridge over 
the river. This access provides adequate visibility splays and is supported by the 
Highway Authority. Site parking is provided for fifty three cars with disabled provision and 
cycle parking to meet current standards.

A temporary access and associated site compound is planned for the duration of the 
works to serve construction traffic. This requires the removal of one tree that forms part 
of a group of six trees on the boundary of the site, and a small area of a group of trees 
within the site. The tree loss and replacement is reported further below.

The Highway Authority accepts the temporary access with appropriate conditions for 
safeguarding traffic and its removal once the permanent access is implanted and brought 
into use.

Page 31



Additional trip analysis has been provided to show cumulative and coincidental vehicle 
movements between the proposed pub and the existing supermarket. This has been 
accepted by the Highway Authority in the interests of assessing potential congestion and 
highway safety.

The need for a travel plan to review and monitor future vehicular activity to the site has 
been discounted as the retail floorspace of the pub/restaurant is below the trigger within 
national guidance. The Highway Authority does however request a number of standard 
conditions.

England Coastal Way

This footpath is on the site boundary but outside of the development site and unaffected. 
A safeguarding condition can ensure the path is unobstructed during development.

Drainage

A drainage strategy has been provided regarding foul and surface water.

Foul drainage is planned to the main sewer accepted by United Utilities

Surface water drainage meets the sequential approach of discharge to the R Derwent 
watercourse. Attenuation methods are planned including underground attenuation tank 
and hydro brakes to manage discharge rates to acceptable levels to avoid the threat of 
flooding. The site is within Flood Zone 1 with only a small area nearest the bridge and 
river bank within Flood Zone 2/3.

The Flood Risk Assessment is conclusive that there is no threat of flooding at the site or 
increases risk elsewhere from the development. The Environment Agency offers no 
comment or objection. The Lead Flood Authority agrees the surface water drainage 
strategy with safeguarding conditions for implementation and maintenance.

The surface water to the river is not considered to impact upon general discharge of the 
river and the biodiversity will not be affected as reported fully below.

Contaminated Land

The Desk Top Study and ground investigations have concluded no threat to public health 
from the development with a remediation and safeguarding condition regarding 
unexpected contamination considered appropriate.

Trees and Landscaping

The temporary access requires the felling of one tree from a group at the boundary of the 
site. These trees are part of a closely planted group of six, Swedish White Beam which 
provides an attractive and distinctive feature at the edge of town. Additionally further 
within the site, a group of less distinctive trees requires some moderate felling with little 
landscape impact.

On balance the loss of these trees is not considered to be significant with the remaining 

Page 32



trees maintaining the landscape feature. To compensate a comprehensive landscaping 
scheme for the whole site will add to the visual appearance of the site and enhance 
biodiversity.

Biodiversity/River Derwent

Natural England has been consulted as the upper reaches of the river are designated as 
a SSSI. They have responded with no objection to general surface water discharge but 
have requested a number of mitigating measures to prevent pollutants reaching the river 
during construction and once in use. A Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) has been provided that includes the requirements of Natural England meeting 
their expectations.

The applicant has provided extensive ecology reports of the site and adjoining river bank 
and watercourse. The reports conclude some general habitat potential but with no 
significant harm identified to any species at or near the site. Safeguarding measures are 
recommended during construction as included within the CEMP.

Crime Prevention

The Crime Prevention Officer has been consulted. The development is considered 
acceptable with no identified concerns from the proposed use. A number of standard 
security measures are suggested that are not considered mandatory or subject to 
planning conditions and can be self-regulated by the developer.

Conclusion

The proposals can be supported for the reasons above with appropriate conditions 
repeated and consistent with the previous consent.

Local Financial Considerations

There are considerations regarding the potential for increased business rates (NNDR) 
payable to the Council. This has carried no weight in the determination of the application.

Page 33



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in accordance 
with the following plans:Construction Environmental Management Plan 
3/7/2014
Ray Parry Play Equipment
J16047/MC/4 Remediation Strategy 21/11/2016
J16047/MC/1 8/9/2016 Gas and Water Addendum 
40 Rev B Proposed Manhole Connection
50 Rev A Pre cast Concrete Headwall Detail
0068/15/0203 Proposed Floor and Roof Plans
0068/15/0204 Rev A Proposed Elevations (amendment 3/7/17)
0068/15/0205 Rev B Proposed Boundary Treatments
0068/15/0206 Rev B Temporary Works Plan
0068/15/0207 Rev C Location Plan
100 Rev B Proposed Site Levels
210 Rev A Gas Main and Protection Details 
348-22-M-01 P1 Mechanical Details
13091 500 Rev E Proposed Drainage Layout (amendment 20/7/2017)
D30523/JM/B Lighting Design 
MR-16-103-101 Rev A Soft Landscaping Design
SK001 Rev D Proposed Site Access (amendment 16/6/2017)
A093505 104 P1 Temporary Site Access (amendment 20/7/2017)
13091 Schematic GA (amendment 20/7/2017)
13091 SW Calcs (amendment 20/7/2017)
AMS TPP Rev B Arboricultural Method Statement Tree Protection Plan 
(amendment 3/7/2017)
0068 15 02 02 Rev D Proposed Site Plan (amendment 3/7/2017)
0068 15 14 25 Rev D Construction Compound Plan (amendment 3/7/2017)
348 22 M 01 Rev P1 Ventilation Plant Details
Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-material alterations 
to the scheme are properly considered.

3. The developmenrt hereby approved shall be undertaken only in full 
accordance with the recommendations and measures contained within the 
approved Construction Environmental Management Plan.
Reason : In order to safeguard the interests of biodiversity, general public amenity 
and highway safety. 

4. The development shall be undertaken only in full accordance with the 
drainage strategy and details submitted. The development shall not 
commence until details of future maintenance and operation of the surface 
water drainage system are agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall not be brought into use until the works are fully 
installed and operational and shall be maintained as such for the lifetime of 

Page 34



the development.
Reason : In order to achieve a sustainable means of drainage in the interests of 
minimising the threat of local flooding.

5. The temporary access and site compound shall be constructed before 
development commences and shall be removed before the development is 
brought into use.
Reason : In the interests of highway safety and visual amenity

6. All hard and soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved landscaping plan. The approved scheme shall be fully 
implemented within the first planting season following the first use of the 
development approved and any trees or plants which within a period of five 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 
with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and minimise the 
impact of the development in the locality.

7. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken only in full accordance 
with the recommendations and measures contained within the Tree Protection 
Method Statement
Reason : In order to safeguard the trees existing on the site.

8. The manager's residential accommodation approved as part of the 
development shall be occupied only by someone employed at the premises 
and their dependants.
Reason : It is considered that the residential accommodation is not appropriate for 
occupation by someone not actively employed at the premises with regard to the 
standard of residential amenity.

9. The approved strategy (GEA gas and water addendum (J16047/MC/1) dated 
8/9/16 and the GEA Remediation Strategy (J16047/MC/4) dated 21/11/16) shall 
be implemented and a verification report submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the development being brought into 
use.
Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination from the 
development to the local environment in compliance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 
2014.

10.  In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the 
site affected must be halted and a risk assessment carried out and submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where 
unacceptable risks are found remediation and verification schemes shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
shall be implemented prior to the development (or relevant phase of 
development) being brought into use. All works shall be undertaken in 
accordance with current UK guidance, particularly CLR11.
Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination from the 
development to the local environment in compliance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 
2014.

Page 35



11. The internal and external carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycle-ways, refuge, 
etc. shall be designed, constructed, drained and lit to a suitable standard and in 
this respect further details, including longitudinal/cross sections and safety audits, 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval before work 
commences on site. No work shall be commenced until a full specification has 
been approved. Any works so approved shall be completed before the 
development is brought into use.
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway 
safety.
12. The development shall not commence until visibility splays providing clear 
visibility of 70 metres in both directions, measured 2.4 metres down the centre of 
the access road and the nearside channel line of the major road have been 
provided at the junctions of the access roads with the County highway. 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, vehicle or 
object of any kind shall be erected, parked or placed and no trees, bushes or other 
plants shall be planted or be permitted to be grown within the visibility splay which 
obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be constructed before 
general development of the site commences so that construction traffic is 
safeguarded.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
13. The use shall not be commenced until the access and parking requirements 
have been constructed in accordance with the approved plan. Any such access 
and or parking provision shall be retained and be capable of use when the 
development is completed and shall not be removed or altered without the prior 
consent of the Local Planning Authority.                                                                    
Reason : To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the development is 
brought into use.

Proactive Statement

Application Approved Following Revisions

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern within the application (as originally submitted) and where appropriate 
negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments and solutions to the proposal to 
address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant 
planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

Page 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0283

Proposed 
Development:

Change of use to provide camping site- Retrospective

Location: Moorhouse
Greengill
Aspatria

Applicant: Mr David Watson

Recommendation: REFUSE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle The location of the proposal would not comply with the sequential 
approach to managing the location of new tourist accommodation 
within the Borough set out by policy S17. 

Landscape and 
Visual Impacts

Wider landscape and visual impacts of the proposal are not 
considered to be significant, given the screening provided by 
existing hedgerows. However, the proposal would result in an 
encroachment of development onto undeveloped greenfield land. 
Policy S17 seeks to control such development to resist sporadic 
encroachment of such development across the open countryside. 

Ecology and 
Biodiversity

It is considered that the proposal would not have any significant 
impacts on ecological or biodiversity value. 

Sustainability The proposal has positives and negatives in terms of sustainability. 
It would promote economic growth by supporting the development 
of additional tourist accommodation of a type that is not yet 
widespread in the Borough. It would provide additional income/new 
employment for the operator and those holidaying at the premises 
would make some use of local shops, pubs/restaurants and leisure 
activities, thereby contributing in a small way to the local economy 
and towards a strategic priority of the Council.
However, the proposal is located in a rural and relatively isolated 
location, and it is considered that most users of the tourist 
accommodation would be reliant on the car for the majority of 
journeys, detracting from the sustainability of the proposal. Further, 
the proposal encroaches onto greenfield land, eroding further this 
undeveloped part of the open countryside.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



Access and Parking The Highways Authority recommend refusal due to the lack of a 
speed survey to inform the required visibility splays, given that the 
full 215m splays for a National Speed Limit road are restricted to 
the south by a rise in the road. 

The proposal will result in a relatively small number of vehicular 
movements and whilst visibility is restricted to a degree to the 
south by the rise in the road, it is considered that the visibility 
available is sufficient to ensure that the risk to users of the access 
would not be severe. As such, refusal on these grounds is not 
considered justified. 

Proposal

The application has been made retrospectively and seeks planning permission for the 
change of use of an existing field to provide a camping site for five pitched tents with 
ancillary parking and provision of a shower/toilet block. The proposed tents are described 
as ‘glamping tents’ that would be provided by the operator and would remain in position 
all year round, as opposed to traditional camping sites where tents are brought on and off 
the site by the visitor. The tents are in situ atop a timber deck and are provided with 
assembled beds and other furniture/kettle facilities/BBQ. The shower/toilet block is 
almost complete. 

The originally submitted plans did not show the true position of the tents and the 
associated fixed structures, therefore amended plans have been provided to address 
this. Additional plans have also been provided for the parking arrangements and the 
constructed shower and toilet block. 

Site

The proposal relates to part of a field to the south west of Moor House, an isolated 
dwelling on the outskirts of Gilcux. Adjacent to the existing dwelling, within a paddock 
area is an existing access leading to Moor Forge blacksmith’s workshop, some informal 
parking, a Viking longhouse educational facility and a small number of animals. This 
existing access would serve the proposed development also. 

Hedging runs to the wider field boundary, with a post and rail fence separating the 
application site from the remaining field. Land levels are relatively flat. 

Relevant Policies

NPPF
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Supporting a prosperous rural economy

Page 40



Promoting sustainable transport

Allerdale Local Plan
Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S14 - Rural economy
Policy S17 - Tourism, Coastal and Countryside Recreation
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S22 - Transport principles
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S5 - Development Principles  

Relevant Planning History

2/2016/0383 - Change of use of land to educational use and construction of a replica 
viking longhouse. Approved. 

2/2006/0586 - Erection of blacksmiths workshop, as amended by letter and plans 
received on 11 September 2006. Approved. 

2/2003/0546 - Change of use of agricultural land to extend domestic garden. Approved.

Representations

Gilcrux Parish Council – Support. The development will complement the existing Viking 
project and other facilities in the village and surrounding area. 
Environmental Health – No comments received. 
Highways - As the hill crest to the south impedes visibility at the access the applicant 
should have undertaken a speed survey to determine the required visibility extents as 
achieving the full 215m at this point is not possible. As the new access has not been 
proved to be safe, the Highways Authority recommend the application is refused.
Fire Officer - No comments received.
Cumbria Constabulary – no comments or concerns. 

The application has been advertised by site notice. No representations have been 
received to date. 

Main Issues:

Principle of the Development

A strategic priority of the Local Plan is to promote economic growth by supporting key 
tourism activities such as outdoor recreation and improvement of accommodation. Policy 
S17 of the Allerdale Local Plan sets out the Council’s approach to the consideration and 
suitable location of visitor accommodation such as camping facilities, whilst prioritising 
the conservation and protection of sensitive landscapes, habitats, species and 
biodiversity that is the major asset of the area for drawing tourism. 

Page 41



As part of a managed approach to promoting sustainable tourism, Policy S17 seeks to 
ensure that development is located within the most sustainable locations in accordance 
with the spatial strategy. Proposals for tourism attractions and accommodation will be 
expected to be located sequentially in Principal, Key and Local Service Centres before 
other locations will be considered. Other locations will only be acceptable where there is 
no significantly harmful impact (directly or indirectly) on the countryside or coast in terms 
of landscape quality or ecological / biodiversity value, is of appropriate scale and design 
and it:

 Forms part of a farm diversification scheme;
 Forms part of an extension proposal for an existing hotel or guest house and it will 

enhance or maintain the viability of the business;
 Forms part of an extension, realignment or relocation of an existing camping or 

caravan site to a less sensitive location which would reduce the impact on nature 
conservation areas and the local environment; or 

 Is part of a scheme to upgrade ancillary facilities at an existing holiday park or 
camping or caravan site.

The proposal would be located outside of any Principal, Key or Local Service Centre. It 
would not form part of a farm diversification scheme, nor an extension or an upgrade to 
an established tourist accommodation facility. As such, in principle, the location of the 
proposal would not comply with the sequential approach to managing the location of new 
tourist accommodation within the Borough. 

Landscape and Visual Impact 

The local landscape to the proposal is relatively flat and is formed by traditional field 
patterns with intervening high hedges. As the application is retrospective, the landscape 
and visual impacts of the proposal are apparent. Due to the limited height of the tents, 
views of the proposal are generally restricted to the very top of the tents over hedges, or 
from limited gaps within the surrounding hedgerows. The scale of the proposal is small 
and associated paraphernalia has been kept to a minimum. As a result, it is considered 
that existing hedgerows mitigate the wider landscape and visual impacts of the proposal 
to a large extent. This could be further mitigated by additional planting. As such, the 
wider visual impacts of the proposal are not considered to be significant. However, the 
proposal would result in an encroachment of development onto undeveloped greenfield 
land within an area not supported by Policy S17. Policy S17 seeks to direct development 
in a manner which resists sporadic encroachment of such development across the open 
countryside. 

Ecological/biodiversity value
 
The tents have been positioned within an existing grassed area, retaining boundary 
hedgerows. There are no designated sites within the locality and no other ecological 
constraints have been highlighted on the Council’s mapping system. As such, it is 
considered that the proposal would not have any significant impacts on ecological or 
biodiversity value. 
  

Page 42



Sustainability 

The NPPF and the ALP (Part 1) recognises that sustainability must be considered in the 
round, taking into consideration environmental, social and economic impacts. 

Whilst the proposal is small in scale, it would promote economic growth by supporting the 
development of additional tourist accommodation of a type that is not yet widespread in 
the Borough. It would provide additional income/new employment for the operator and 
those holidaying at the premises would make some use of local shops, pubs/restaurants 
and leisure activities, thereby contributing in a small way to the local economy and 
towards a strategic priority of the Council.  

However, the proposal is located in a rural and relatively isolated location, with no 
existing tourist facility or tourist accommodation nearby. The nearest public footpath is 
located approx. 700m to the west, leading to Tallentire and Crosby. Other footpaths at a 
further distance link Gilcrux to Tallentire and these villages are approx. 1.5km and 1.7km 
respectively from the proposal. There is no designated cycle route in close proximity and 
no public transport. As such, it is considered that most users of the tourist 
accommodation would be reliant on the car for the majority of journeys, detracting from 
the sustainability of the proposal. Further, the proposal encroaches onto greenfield land, 
eroding further this undeveloped part of the open countryside, albeit it is accepted that 
there is a cluster of development adjacent and the wider landscape and visual impacts of 
the proposal would be limited. 

As such, whilst it is accepted that the proposal offers some social and economic benefits, 
the location of the proposal is considered to be unsustainable and such proposals if not 
appropriately controlled, would in accumulation, erode the open countryside in a 
detrimental manner. 

Access and Parking

Amended plans have been provided showing minibus space and parking given that the 
toilet and shower block has been positioned within the area previously shown to provide 
a minibus space for the Viking longhouse educational facility. The Highways Authority 
has been re-consulted on this and there comments are awaited. Should the amended 
plan be unacceptable, it is considered that further amendments could be secured by 
condition should Members decide to support the proposal, as ample space exists on site. 
Members of the Development Panel will be updated on the Highway Authority’s 
response. 

The Highways Authority has recommend refusal of the proposal due to the lack of a 
speed survey to inform the required visibility splays, given that the full 215m splays for a 
National Speed Limit road are restricted to the south by a rise in the road. 

The proposal will result in a relatively small number of vehicular movements and whilst 
visibility is restricted to a degree to the south by the rise in the road, it is considered that 
the visibility available is sufficient to ensure that the risk to users of the access would not 
be severe. As such, refusal on these grounds is not considered justified. 

Page 43



Other Issues:

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act, the proposal may have 
financial implications arising from Business Rates Revenue.

Conclusion

Whilst it is assessed that this proposal would have limited wider landscape and 
biodiversity harm, it is considered that the relatively small scale economic and social 
benefits of the proposal would not outweigh the harm arising from the unsustainable 
location of the proposal and the resulting reliance on the private car, and the piecemeal 
encroachment of such development in the open countryside, which Policy S17 seeks to 
resist. Unless the criteria for the location of such development is adhered to, then such 
proposals in accumulation would result in an inappropriate level of erosion of the open 
countryside.   

Page 44



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

The development fails to meet the requirements of Policy S17 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1) 2014 in terms of the location of new tourist accommodation and as 
such, would result in an unsustainable form of development, by reason of its reliance 
on the private car for the majority of journeys and the piecemeal encroachment onto 
undeveloped land within the open countryside.

Proactive Statement
 

Retrospective applications 

The Local planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining the 
application and averting the potentially necessity and expediency for pursuit of 
enforcement proceedings. The proposal was assessed against all material planning 
policies and representations that may have been received and subsequently determining 
to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Notes to Applicant: None

Page 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 48



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0365

Proposed 
Development:

Proposed affordable dwelling

Location: Mill Barn
Wiggonby
Wigton

Applicant: Messrs  Taylor

Recommendation: REFUSE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
Development

The application site is located in the village of Wiggonby in an 
open countryside location outside any defined settlement limit. The 
proposed dwelling represents an inappropriate and non-essential 
form of development in the open countryside contrary to the 
provisions of Policy S3, S5 and S9 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 
1).

Layout, Scale and 
Appearance

It is considered that a suitable layout of the site and design of 
dwelling can be achieved on the site whilst safeguarding the 
amenity of adjoining properties.

Access It is considered an acceptable access and egress can be achieved 
for the site. 

Proposal

This outline application is for the erection of a single affordable dwelling on Land adjacent 
to Mill Barn, Wiggonby. The principle of allowing a dwelling on this site is to be 
considered as part of this application with the details of access, layout, appearance, 
scale and landscaping to be dealt with as reserved matters. The existing dilapidated 
agricultural buildings would be removed from site.

Site

The application site is located within the village of Wiggonby. The site itself forms an area 
of land measuring 0.08 hectares in size and currently houses two agricultural buildings 
with the one to the rear of the site in a very dilapidated state.  The site is accessed from 
the main road via an existing access, with the land gradually sloping upwards from the 
road to the rear of the site.

To the east of the site are residential units and agricultural fields to the west and south of 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



the proposal site. The land levels of the adjacent sites follow that on the application site. 

Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework
Building a strong, competitive economy
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
Requiring good design 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) – Adopted July 2014

Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 – Sustainable Development Principles
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth 
Policy S4 - Design principles
Policy S5 – Development Principles
Policy S7 - A mixed and balanced housing market 
Policy S9 – Rural Exceptions Sites for affordable housing
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage 
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S35 – Protecting and Enhancing Biodiversity and Geodiversity
Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design

Representations

Councillor Call In – Cllr Macdonald – Earlier this year, an application for a dwelling on 
this site was refused permission by the development control panel, to the dismay of local 
people and the Parish Council. This is a different proposal and I am keen to ensure that 
the panel is presented with as much details as possible to enable them to reach their 
decision. 

Aikton Parish Council – No objections

Environmental Health – The proposed site is currently an agricultural use therefore 
there could be contaminants within the ground due to the previous use. I would therefore 
recommend contamination conditions. 

Cumbria Highways – It is considered that the proposal will not have a material affect on 
existing highway conditions. I can confirm that the Highway Authority have no objection 
to the proposal from a Highways perspective subject to conditions.

LLFA – The LLFA do not have any records of flooding on this site and the Environment 
Agency surface water maps do not indicate that the site is in an area of risk. However we 
suggest you include a condition relating to surface water drainage.

United Utilities – In accordance with the NPPF and the NPPG the site should be drained 
on a separate system with foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water 
draining in the most sustainable way.

Page 50



Fire Officer – No response to date

Adjoining owners have been notified. No representations have been received to date.

Main Issues:

Background

Members may recollect an application 2/2017/0115 for a dwelling on this site was put 
before members at the panel meeting on the 11 April 2017. The application was 
recommend for refusal on the following ground:

“The Local Planning Authority considers the proposed dwelling constitutes an 
inappropriate non-essential form of residential development in the open countryside and 
would therefore be contrary to the provisions of Policy S3 and S5 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1) Adopted July 2014 and paragraph 17 the principles and paragraph 55 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.”

Members considered the application and determined to refuse the application in line with 
officers recommendations.

The current application seeks permission for a single dwelling in line with the previous 
application but the dwelling is put forward as an affordable unit siting Policy S9 Rural 
Exceptions Sites.

Principle of Development

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires that Local Planning Authorities 
identify sufficient deliverable sites to provide five year supply of housing against their 
housing requirements. The Annual Monitoring Report for 2017 demonstrates the Local 
Planning Authority has a 5.3 year supply of housing which includes a 20% buffer 
allowance due to a record of under-delivery and shortfalls from 2011. Demonstration of a 
five year supply of deliverable housing sites means the policies for the supply of housing 
contained within the Local Plan are considered to be up-to-date, in accordance with 
paragraph 49 of National Planning Policy Framework. The policy framework for the 
supply of housing within the plan area is set out in Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy.  

Policy S3 establishes that provision will be made for at least 5471 new dwellings in 
Allerdale in the period ending in 2029. This amounts to an annual average of 304 
dwellings. Policy S3 also seeks to concentrate the necessary new development in 
identified towns and villages in a settlement hierarchy.  

The application site lies with the village of Wiggonby which does not form part of the 
identified settlement hierarchy to accommodate additional new build dwellings. As the 
application site is outside any identified settlement within Policy S3 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1) it is considered the application site is located within the open countryside. 
Figure 5 of Policy S3 highlights that proposals for housing outside defined settlements 
will be limited to:

Page 51



a. Housing essential for rural workers in the operation of a rural based enterprise;
b. Housing following the rural exceptions policy;
c. An appropriate diversification of an existing agricultural or land based activity;
d. The optimal viable use of a heritage asset or appropriate enabling development to      

secure the future of heritage assets;
g. The replacement of an existing dwelling;
i. The conversion or reuse of a suitable existing building;

The applicants design and access statement highlights that the dwelling would meet an 
evidenced local affordable need for housing in the Wigton Housing Market Areas such 
that it should be supported in policy and allow for population growth to assist in ensuring 
the long-term viability of pupil numbers at the Wiggonby primary school. 

It is considered the evidence based for a dwelling in this location has not been 
demonstrated as part of the application and insufficient justification has been submitted 
with the application to show the development would fall within the limitation for 
development outside of settlements as highlighted in Policy S3. 

Policy S9 states that “The Council will support rural affordable housing exception sites in 
Local Services and Rural Villages, provided that:

a) The development will meet or assist in meeting an identified evidence based need 
for affordable housing in the area, which would not be otherwise met;

b) The site is well-related and sympathetic to the form and character of the 
settlement, demonstrates good design and allows accessibility to community 
services and facilities within it;

c) The scale is in keeping with the settlement’s setting and its role in the hierarchy;
d) The site is considered to be the most suitable to meet the identified need;
e) The applicant enters into an appropriate legal agreement that ensures the 

accommodation will meet the need for local affordable housing in perpetuity.”

As officers have highlighted the site lies in the open countryside outside of any settlement 
where new build dwellings would be supported. This site would therefore fail to meet the 
identified settlement hierarchy for housing. 

The agent has made reference to the Allerdale 2016 Housing Study that identifies a net 
annual imbalance of 42 dwellings needed for 2-4 bed house. However, within the Locality 
of Wigton there a number of rural villages such as Oulton, Kirkbampton and Thursby 
along with the town of Wigton that could support Housing to address this need. The 
village does not have community facilities other than the school. The proposal for an 
affordable dwelling in this location would therefore not meet the settlement hierarchy, 
with no identified evidence provided for a dwelling in this village rather than the 
surrounding villages which could meet the affordable need.  

In considering approving dwellings in the village to support the viability of the school this 
was considered in full at adoption stage of the Allerdale Local Plan and was determined 
that a school on its own was not sustainable to seek the grown of the village of Wiggonby 
and thereby not been included in the villages for growth. The addition of a single unit 
alone will not significantly impact on the long-term viability of the school to warrant 

Page 52



overriding the settlement hierarchy as outlined in Policy S3. The agent makes reference 
to siting dwellings outside of Wiggonby seems to encourage the use of cars whereas a 
dwelling in Wiggonby would not be reliant on the car to access the essential service of 
the school. Wiggonby, however offers no other facilities such as shops and therefore 
there would be a need to rely on cars to assess all other services with regular public 
transport not available. Furthermore the Council can now demonstrate the availability of 
an adequate supply of housing land taking into account the 20% buffer required by the 
NPPF in the light of previous delivery rates. 

The proposed dwelling and the contents in the planning statement do not satisfy any of 
the above criteria and therefore must be considered to be contrary to the provisions of 
policy S3, S5 and S9 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) with the proposal resulting in a 
non-essential dwelling in the open countryside. 

Layout, Scale and Appearance

The exact details of the layout of the site and the appearance of the dwelling would be 
considered as part of the reserved matters application. Existing dwellings in the form of a 
two storey dwelling is located to the north west of the site with a single storey dwelling 
located to the east fronting the highway. The site is bounded by agricultural land to the 
south and west. 

In assessing the development of the site officers consider an appropriate layout and 
design of dwelling could be achieved on site while safeguarding the amenity of nearby 
residential units and facilitating a scheme that would fit in with the existing streetscene.  

Access

The site has a single existing access which serves the site. The site plan submitted with 
the application includes visibility splays although the exact position of the access is 
reserved. Cumbria Highways have assessed the application and consider that the 
proposal will not have a material affect on existing highway conditions. Therefore they 
raise no objections to the proposal from a highway perspective subject to conditions.

Other Issues:

Drainage

A Drainage Assessment carried out by the agent has been submitted with the application 
that details they are proposing to discharge foul by way of a Package Treatment Plant 
and Surface water via water butts. However, officers and the LLFA consider insufficient 
information has been submitted to demonstrate that these forms of drainage are 
acceptable and the most appropriate means of disposing of drainage from the site. It is 
anticipated that a suitable form of drainage can be achieved for the site and therefore the 
details of the drainage scheme in line with the hierarchy drainage options in the National 
Planning Policy Guidance can be secured via condition.

Ecology

Given the materials and design of the existing modern agricultural buildings on the site 

Page 53



officers do not consider that the buildings are suitable to house protected species and no 
ecology assessment is required for the loss of the buildings. 

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act the proposal could 
attract New Homes Bonus and future Council Tax.

Conclusion

Officers consider the proposed dwelling would not meet the requirements of Policy S9 of 
the Allerdale Local Plan relating to rural exception sites for affordable housing and would 
therefore result in non-essential development located within an open countryside location 
contrary to the provisions of Policy S3 and S5 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

Page 54



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. The Local Planning Authority considers the proposed dwelling constitutes an 
inappropriate non-essential form of residential development in the open 
countryside and would therefore be contrary to the provisions of Policy S3 
and S5 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) Adopted July 2014 and paragraph 
17 the principles and paragraph 55 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Proactive Statement

Application Refused Following Discussion – Where there is no Way Forward

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with the Applicant.  However, 
the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been possible to negotiate a 
satisfactory way forward and due to the harm which has been clearly identified within the 
reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not been possible.

Page 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 58



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0005

Proposed 
Development:

Demolition of commercial buildings and residential development of 
up to 20 dwellings - Resubmission of application 2/2016/0059

Location: Graham's Garage
Prospect
Aspatria
Wigton

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Brian/Helen Graham/Ostle

Recommendation: APPROVE - subject to S106 planning obligation

Summary/Key Issues

This application was considered by the Development Panel on 27 June 2017 when 
Members resolved to grant planning permission. 

Whilst officers had recommended that planning permission be refused (copy of report 
appended – Appendix 1) Members resolved to grant planning permission for the following 
reason:

“Owing to financial viability and sustainability of this employment site in the long term 
being unsustainable the merits of the application outweigh the constraints of policy S12 in 
this isolated case”.

Members were advised that as the decision would be a departure from Development 
Plan Policy it would be necessary to advertise this prior to the issue of a decision notice 
and should any objections be received the application would be referred back to the 
Panel for further consideration. 

Further representations received. 

A further three representations have been received; one letter indicating that they do not 
object to the application and two objections.

The objections relate to the existing infrastructure within the village particularly the 
sewers which have already needed attention at least 4 times in recent years.  The 
objector states that they object to the application unless a new sewer pipe is laid to join 
the main sewer.  The other objector states that the proposed application for up to 20 
dwellings on the site of the garage in Prospect village is over development and 
inappropriate. Indicate that the application is for profit only and the owner has run down 
the original garage buildings to such an extent that they are now an eyesore they indicate 
that a more appropriate design should be sought, more in line with the village character.

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Assessment of further representations received.

Officers would comment in relation to the above objections that United Utilities have 
examined the application and has not raised any objections in the provision of dwellings 
on this site.  It is considered that the existing infrastructure can accommodate this 
proposal.

In terms of the dilapidated state of the building the visual appearance of the site would be 
improved by the redevelopment of the site.  The visual appearance of the site and 
dwellings would be considered at reserved matters stage where officers would assess 
the development in consideration with the village character.

Conclusion

Taking into account the previously expressed view of the Development Panel it is 
considered that the additional representations received would not appear provide 
justification for the Panel to take a contrary view.

As set out in the previous report the applicant has agreed to provide 25% affordable 
housing with a tenure split of 75% social rented and 25% intermediate affordable units 
and this will be secured by a S106 planning obligation.

It is recommended that the following conditions are recommended to be attached to the 
grant of planning permission.

Page 60



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. Before any works commence details of the layout, scale and appearance, 
access and landscaping (hereinafter called 'reserved matters') shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: The application has been submitted as an outline application, in 
accordance with the provisions of the details of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) Order 2015.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following plans:
DWG NO 15 PG LOC Location Plan
DWG NO 15 PG LOC Site Plan
RLP15PHA1009 Final - Ecological Report
Phase 1 Desk Top Study
Reason: In order to ensure that the development is carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and any material and non-material alterations 
to the scheme are properly considered.

3. The submission of all reserved matters applications shall be made no later 
than the expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of this permission and 
the development shall begin no later  than whichever is the later of the 
following dates:
(a) The expiration of 3 years from the date of the grant of this permission, 
or 
(b) The expiration of 2 years from the final approval of the reserved 
matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of 
the last such matter to be approved.
Reason: In order to comply with Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990.

4. Any proposed garaging facilities approved at 'reserved matters' shall at all 
times be retained for the parking of motor vehicles and shall not be used for 
or converted into habitable residential living accommodation without the 
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory vehicular parking facilities within 
the application site, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policy S22 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

5. Provision shall be made in the submission of any reserved matters 
application for a minimum of two parking spaces for each individual 
dwellinghouse.
Reason: To ensure that a minimum standard of off-street parking provision is 
made for the development and in the interests of highway safety in compliance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S22 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

6. The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be designed, drained and lit 

Page 61



to a standard suitable for adoption and in this respect further details, 
including longitudinal/cross sections, shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval before any part of the development hereby 
permitted is commenced. No work shall be commenced until a full 
specification has been approved. These details shall be in accordance with 
the standards laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide. Any works so 
approved shall be constructed before the development is fully occupied.
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction within the approved 
development in the interests of highway safety.

7. The development shall not be brought into use until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility of 120 metres x 2.4 metres measured down the 
centre of the access road and the nearside channel line of the major road 
have been provided at the junction of the access road with the county 
highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, or 
object of any kind shall be erected or placed and no trees, bushes or other 
plants which exceed 1m in height shall be planted or be permitted to grow 
within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays.
Reason: To ensure an acceptable standard of highway access during the 
construction and operational use of the site, in compliance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy S2 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), 
Adopted July 2014.

8. Before the dwellings are occupied the existing access to the highway shall 
be permanently closed and the highway crossing and boundary shall be 
reinstated in accordance with details which have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To minimise highway danger for construction or operational traffic and for 
the avoidance of doubt.

9. There shall be no vehicular access to or egress from the site other than via 
the approved access, unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and environmental management.

10.Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.
Reason: To secure proper drainage and manage the risk of flooding and pollution.

11.Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage 
scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions 
(inclusive of how the scheme shall be managed after completion) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 
2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards. In the event of 
surface water draining to the public surface water sewer, the pass forward 
flow rate to the public surface water sewer should be restricted to existing 

Page 62



greenfield runoff for any storm event.
Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution.

12.No development shall be occupied until the details of future drainage 
maintenance and operation are agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall thereafter be maintained at all times in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that the surface water system continues to function as 
designed.

13.No dwellinghouses shall be sited within an easement strip of 3 metres either 
side of the centre line of the existing sewers traversing across the site.
Reason: In order to protect the existing drainage infrastructure services on the 
site.

14.Further to the Phase 1 Desk top study ref CC/RG/PG1#1 (July 2015) , all 
necessary site investigation works within the site boundary as part of a 
Phase 2 ground investigation report must be carried out to establish the 
degree and nature of the contamination and its potential to pollute the 
environment or cause harm to human health. The scope of works for the site 
investigations should be agreed with the Local Planning Authority prior to 
their commencement.
Reason:  To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising from any 
possible contamination from the development to the local environment in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

15.Should land affected by contamination be identified under the desktop study 
condition 14 following site investigations which poses unacceptable risks to 
human health, controlled waters or the wider environment, no development 
shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must 
include an appraisal of remediation options, identification of the preferred 
option(s), the proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, and 
a description and programme of the works to be undertaken including the 
verification plan.
Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising from any 
possible contamination from the development to the local environment in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

16.Should a remediation scheme be required under condition 15, the approved 
strategy shall be implemented and a verification report submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the 
development (or relevant phase of development) being brought into use.
Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising from any 
possible contamination from the development to the local environment in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Page 63



17. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the 
site affected must be halted and a risk assessment carried out and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where 
unacceptable risks are found remediation and verification schemes shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
shall be implemented prior to the development (or relevant phase of 
development) being brought into use. All works shall be undertaken in 
accordance with current UK guidance, particularly CLR11.
Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination from the 
development to the local environment in compliance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted 
July 2014.

18.No development shall take place until a Construction and Demolition Method 
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The statement shall include the following:
(a) Traffic Management Plan to include all traffic associated with the 
development, including site and staff traffic, off site parking, turning and 
compound areas;
(b) Procedure to monitor and mitigate noise and vibration from the 
construction and demolition and to monitor any properties at risk of damage 
from vibration, as well as taking into account noise from vehicles, 
deliveries. All measurements should make reference to BS7445.
(c) Mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts on residential 
properties from construction compounds including visual impact, noise, 
and light pollution.
(d) A written procedure for dealing with complaints regarding the 
construction or demolition;
(e) Measures to control the emissions of dust and dirt during 
construction and demolition (including any wheel washing facilities);
(f) Programme of work for Demolition and Construction phase;
(g) Hours of working and deliveries;
(h) Details of lighting to be used on site.
(i)      Highway signage / Haulage routes 
The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the duration of the 
development.
Reason:  In the interests of safeguarding the amenity of the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties during the construction works of the development hereby 
approved, in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 
S32 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014 and in the interests of 
highway safety.

19.No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a 
plan has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority to 
show all existing trees which are to be felled or retained, together with the 
positions and height of protective fences, the areas for the storage of 
materials and stationing of machines and huts, and the position and width of 

Page 64



temporary site roads and accesses. The details so approved shall be 
implemented prior to the commencement of the development and 
maintained at all times during the construction period.
Reason: In order to ensure that adequate protection is afforded to the existing 
trees on the site prior to any excavation/construction works on the site.

20.The details submitted in pursuance of Condition 1 shall be accompanied by 
a scheme of hard and soft landscaping which shall include indications of all 
existing trees, hedgerows and shrubs on the site, and details of any to be 
retained, together with measures for the protection in the course of 
development. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised within the scheme 
shall be carried out in the first planting season following completion of the 
development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from 
the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
other similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and minimise 
the impact of the development in the locality, in compliance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policies S4 and DM14 of the Allerdale Local Plan 
(Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

Proactive Statement

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern within the application (as originally submitted) and where appropriate 
negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments and solutions to the proposal to 
address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant 
planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

Notes to Applicant:

Page 65



Appendix 1

Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application 2/2017/0005

Proposed 
Development:

Demolition of commercial buildings and residential development of 
up to 20 dwellings - Resubmission of application 2/2016/0059

Location: Graham's Garage
Prospect
Aspatria
Wigton

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Brian/Helen Graham/Ostle

Recommendation: REFUSE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
development

The loss of employment land is considered to be detrimental and 
contrary to policies within the Allerdale Local Plan.

Access, 
Appearance, Scale, 
Landscaping and 
Layout

To be considered at reserved matters stage.

Access and parking Consider that a suitable access and sufficient space for onsite 
parking provisions can be accommodated.

Affordable dwellings The applicant has agreed that the provision of a percentage of 
affordable properties within the scheme is acceptable.

Ecological survey No significant effects. 

Drainage Consider a suitable scheme can be satisfactorily achieved on land 
within the applicant’s control.

Residential Amenity No significant harm to nearby residential properties

Proposal

The application seeks outline permission with all matters reserved for the demolition of 
the existing commercial premises which compromises a number of large units which are 
presently occupied by light industrial uses and the erection of up to 20 residential 
properties in its place.

Page 66



Site

The site is located in a prominent position on the periphery of the Village of Prospect with 
a road frontage onto the A596 and is 1.9km to the south west of Aspatria.

The site is currently occupied by three separate businesses and would be classed as a 
brownfield site.  To the rear of the large commercial premises is a substantial residential 
dwelling with a large domestic curtilage backing out onto open countryside.  There are a 
number of mature trees located within the domestic curtilage, which is sited outside 
Prospect’s saved settlement limit.

The application site is bound by residential properties to the south west, highway to the 
north west and open countryside to the north east and south east.

Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework

Building a strong, competitive economy
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Supporting a prosperous rural economy
Promoting sustainable transport
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Requiring good design

Allerdale Local Plan July 2014 (Part 1)

Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth
Policy S4 - Design principles
Policy S5 - Development Principles
Policy S6 - Area Based
Policy S7 - A mixed and balanced housing market
Policy S8 - Affordable Housing
Policy S12 - Land and Premises  
Policy S21 - Developer contributions (excluding viability)
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S35 - Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity
Policy DM3 - Protection of Employment Sites
Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design
Policy DM17 - Trees, hedgerows and woodland

Relevant Planning History

2/2016/0059 – Outline for 20 residential units – Withdrawn

Page 67



Representations

Parish Council – The parish council have indicated that there were strong 
representations from the tenants of the existing development, voicing concerns for 
financial investments made to install modern equipment and that a lease to 2024 had in 
one instance been granted to ensure the tenant could justify the capital outlay.

The parish council do not support the change of use and wish to safeguard the 
employment that it provides.

Environment Agency – Permission could be granted subject to a preliminary risk 
assessment identifying all previous uses, potential contaminates associated with 
previous uses, a conceptual model of the site including sources, pathways and receptors 
and potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.  A site 
investigation and risk assessment and a verification plan.

Environmental Health – No objections subject to a contaminated land assessment and 
the submission of a construction management plan.

Highways  - No objections subject to conditions relating to the submission of details of 
the road and footpath construction, visibility splays, closure of existing access, use of an 
approved access only, surface water drainage details and layout, parking, turning and 
access requirements.

Natural England – No comments

Cumbria Constabulary – Any future application should consider crime prevention as 
part of the design.

Access Officer – No objections

Housing – Require 25% of the units to be affordable as per the Allerdale Local Plan 

United Utilities – No objections subject to foul and surface water being drained on 
separate systems and the surface water should be drained on the hierarchy of drainage 
options.  A public sewer crosses the site and they will not permit building over it.  
Conditions would be required for the maintenance of any sustainable drainage system for 
schemes of 10 or more units.  There are a number of easements in the vicinity which 
should not be affected by the development.

The application has been advertised on site and within the local press.  Neighbouring 
properties have been notified.

There has been three letters of objection on the grounds of;

 there is already planning for 25 houses within the village
 the re-development would put 11 people out of work
 this is the only industrial site within Prospect.

Page 68



 There are no other suitable units within the immediate area.
 There have been reports that the building is an eyesore; however, the exterior of 

the building is the landlords responsibility and they have not invested a reasonable 
percentage of the rent into planned maintenance or painting buildings could be 
potentially run down to gaining planning permission.

 Investment has been made into MOT equipment and machinery and a tenancy 
agreement has been signed until 2024.

 The tenants have done repairs to the building that are the landlord’s responsibility.
 Loss of local employment.
 The houses would be an eyesore.

Main Issues:

The application is not supported by an indicative layout plan; however, the application 
documentation indicates that the existing dwelling would be retained as part of the 
proposal.  The site occupies an area of 0.75ha in its entirety and is highly visible within 
the surrounding area.

The site is located within Prospect which is defined as a Local Service Centre within the 
Allerdale Local Plan, with Prospect and Oughterside including a range of facilities 
including a school and good public transport links.  

The majority of the site is located within the settlement boundaries of Prospect; a small 
section to the rear is not within the current settlement boundary of the village but was 
formally used as a garden area for the existing dwelling.

The three businesses currently occupying the site have been established for a number of 
years and the site is at present fully occupied. The three units compromise caravan 
breakers which occupies a four bay unit with external storage areas to the north east of 
the building.  There is an upholstery business which occupies two central bays has been 
at the premises since 1999 and an MOT Garage and car repair workshop which 
compromises a two bay unit plus office and storage to the first floor.  

It is noted that the tenant of the garage business has occupied the site since 2005 and 
has recently invested in equipment at the site showing an intention to carry on the 
business from these premises.  

The commercial building on site is in an extremely poor state of repair and needs 
substantial outlay to bring the building up to modern day standards.

Principle of development

The Local Plan embraces the core principles of the NPPF with the presumption in favour 
of development where there is no demonstrable harm and where development is in 
accordance with development plan policies as prescribed within the Town and Country 
Planning Act.

The focus of this outline application concerns the principle of the development in the 
context of both the councils housing and industrial local plan policies.

Page 69



The basic principles of residential development and the Council’s strategy for housing 
growth are specified within Policies S3 and S5. 

Policy S3 establishes that provision will be made for at least 5471 new dwellings in 
Allerdale in the period ending in 2029. This amounts to an annual average of 304 
dwellings.  Policy S3 also seeks to concentrate the necessary new development in 
identified towns and villages in a settlement hierarchy.  

Policy S5 requires that the scale of new development should be commensurate to the 
size of the settlement and reflect its position within the hierarchy. It also requires the 
prioritising and effective re-use of previously developed land. 

Following the adoption of the Allerdale Local Plan Part 1 (ALPP1) in 2014 the Local 
Planning Authority presently has a total supply of 5.6 years (as of July 2016) based on its 
annual supply target. This includes 20% increase due to a record of persistent under 
delivery and shortfalls in delivery since 2011.  Consequently the council presently 
benefits a five year housing supply.

As the LPA are able to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites the 
policies for the supply of housing contained within the ALPP1 are to be considered up-to-
date, in accordance with paragraph 49 of NPPF. The policy framework for the supply of 
housing within the plan area is set out in the spatial strategy, contained within Policy S3. 
This policy identifies that Prospect, along with the other LCS’s will provide for 1094 
residential over the plan period 2011-2029.  

The majority of the application site lies within the settlement boundary for Prospect 
identified in the old Allerdale Local Plan 1999, and is allocated as an employment site 
under saved policy REM4 whilst work on the site allocations DPD is undertaken. The part 
of the site that lies outside the settlement boundary appears to be the garden area 
associated with the adjoining dwelling, and relates well to the existing settlement pattern. 
Officers therefore consider this is a sustainable location. 

Prospect is identified in Policy S3 of the ALP (part 1) 2014 as a Local Service Centre 
which, in combination with the other 10 Local Service Centres, will accommodate 
approximately 20 % of the housing growth required for the district for the period up to 
2029.  The policy also sets out how a small level of employment land may be required to 
meet local needs for small flexible premises and shared facilities, and that employment 
land will be distributed throughout the plan period.  It is anticipated that approximately 35 
new dwellings will be needed in Prospect over the plan period.

The saved settlement limit for this village reflects the extent of the existing industrial 
development, but excludes the single domestic dwelling and its curtilage on the southern 
side of the site. Therefore although the proposal extends outside Policy S3’s settlement 
limits by virtue of it solely enclosing and substituting an established residential land use 
with no encroachment into open countryside it is considered the merits of the proposal do 
not conflict with its policy objectives.  

However despite the deteriorating appearance of the site, given the location of the site on 
a trunk road with good transport links, the site was considered to offer a good opportunity 

Page 70



to secure employment for Prospect and the local area.

The employment land review (2012) concluded that there is an excess of employment 
land within the district, with scope for de-allocation of some sites.  Policy S12 of the ALP 
(part 1) sets out how existing employment sites and allocations will be retained and 
safeguarded until these are reviewed through the site allocations process.  Whilst the 
policy indicates that sites which are of poor quality or have little prospect of being 
developed or improved may be removed, it also makes it clear that it is important to 
retain employment sites that currently make a contribution to local employment.  This site 
falls within this category. It was observed that the premises was occupied by three 
separate businesses during their site assessments, at least one of which is 
longstanding.  Furthermore, policy S6f, the Area based policy for the Aspatria locality 
seeks to protect and maximise the use of employment sites.

Policy DM3 protects existing and allocated employment sites against non-employment 
uses to help ensure that there is a sufficient supply of employment land to meet the areas 
economic development requirements over the plan period.  Given the current occupation 
of the site, and the contribution that it makes to local employment, redevelopment for 
housing would be inconsistent with this policy. This policy also provides a sequential 
approach for consideration of mixed uses If there is sufficient evidence that justifies the 
development of employment sites for alternative uses. 

Paragraph 22 of the NPPF makes it clear that planning policies should avoid the long 
term protection of sites allocated for employment use where there is no reasonable 
prospect of a site being used for that purpose, and applications for alternative uses 
should be treated on their merits having regard to market signals and the relative need 
for different land uses to support sustainable local communities. This is not however a 
vacant derelict site; it is being used for employment purposes.

Planning permission has been granted for 25 new homes in Prospect and there are other 
suitable sites for housing that have been put forward for consideration in the site 
allocations process under the present Part 2 process of the plan, but little weight can be 
presently attached to these alternatives .Consequently although it is anticipated there will 
be the need for further housing growth within the village given the industrial allocation of 
the site there is insufficient weight in favour of redeveloping this employment site for 
residential development.  

The appearance of the site is a material consideration, but with businesses operating 
successfully from this site in an area where alternative employment opportunities are 
otherwise limited, and with alternative housing sites available in Prospect, housing on this 
site is not supported.

It is highlighted that if the council was to consider that employment use was no longer 
suitable for the site, the developer should look to the following sequence in alternative 
uses for the site under policy DM3.

“d) A mix of employment and non-employment uses excluding residential; such as 
schemes that incorporate social infrastructure including compatible D1 uses such as 
education and training facilities, day centres, clinics and health centres;
e) A mix of uses which provide employment opportunities will be preferred to single-use 

Page 71



residential development. In the lower tier of the settlement hierarchy live/work units will 
be supported;
f) Proposals for change to single-use residential use will only be considered where it can 
be demonstrated that criteria d) and e) has been satisfied, and;
g) Only on sites within settlements that accord with the spatial strategy and are defined in 
the Settlement Hierarchy ; and
h) Where applicants have considered the local housing allocation and provide robust 
evidence that there are no suitable alternatives for the proposal.”

Given that the application has not considered the cascade for the release of employment 
sites under DM3 officers consider any release of employment site for residential use only 
would be contrary to policy DM3 and S12.

Viability

A valuation report has been prepared in terms of the building which outlines that the 
costs of repair would not be viable as the financial outlay to bring the building to a 
suitable standard would be too great when considering the rents that could be achieved.

The applicant has not provided a marketing assessment for the property and has 
indicated that one of the tenants has marketed their business as a going concern without 
any interest.   The marketing of the individual tenant does not demonstrate that the site 
as a whole or as individual units is not viable for employment use.  There is the possibility 
that other alternative employment uses are suitable for the site or new units could replace 
the existing building.

Policy DM3 aims to retain employment sites that currently make a contribution to local 
employment and as the applicants have not marketed the site as a whole or as individual 
unit’s, officers consider that there is no evidence to demonstrate that the site could not be 
in beneficial employment use in the future bearing in mind the current occupancy of the 
site. 

The valuation report has been independently assessed and does not dispute that the 
building is coming to the end of its viable life; however, the report outlines that they have 
failed to provide the evidence required within policy DM3 that the site could not be used 
for beneficial employment use.  

The report highlights that in normal circumstances the building would be vacant or 
partially vacant to be taken out of employment use.  Also they would normally expect a 
robust marketing exercise to have been undertaken to demonstrate that the land has 
been for sale or to let to show that there is no demand for the premises as an investment 
for continuing employment. 

The assessment indicates that the valuation provided by the applicant in relation to the 
property in its current state and in an upgraded state is fair and agree that it may not be 
viable to renovate the property to bring it up to satisfactory modern employment 
requirements. The report goes on to examine the policy context in more detail and 
concurs with the conclusions above of the Councils policy response and highlight the fact 
that as the site is occupied by three tenants they would need to satisfy the criteria within 
d-h above, they indicate that the applicant has failed to demonstrate that points d e and h 

Page 72



of policy DM3 have been addressed as part of the proposal.

The report highlights that they would have expected to provide robust evidence that there 
are no suitable alternatives for the proposal which show alternative options under d and e 
being considered and supporting financial appraisals.

The report concludes that even though it is considered upgrading the property is not 
viable the applicants report on the financial viability of the site does not take into account 
planning policy obligations and characteristics of the site including the cost of demolition 
and remediation but only considered prices paid for small residential sites elsewhere 
without providing details.

Design and Appearance

With this a reserved matter, the precise details of design and materials are not subject of 
this application.

No indication of scale has been put forward; however, given the existing built 
development on site and surrounding two storey properties officers would not oppose two 
storey or single storey dwellings on this site.

Landscape and visual amenity

It is acknowledged that the building is not of any significant architectural quality and the 
loss of the building would not be significant in terms of visual aspects of the area.  The 
development of housing on the site would provide landscaping as part of the reserved 
matters which could minimise the impact from the development and enhance the area 
with appropriate landscaping, boundary treatments and scale and massing of the 
proposed dwellings

In allowing housing on the site it would not have any more of a significant visual impact 
than the existing building; however, the benefits of the removal of the building are not 
considered to outweigh the harm of the loss of the employment on the site.

Access, Parking and Highways

The proposed access to the site is by way of a new access point off the A596.  The 
visibility splays for a development of this size can be satisfactorily achieved.  The 
highways authority has not objected to the proposal subject to details being submitted to 
demonstrate the access road would be to adoptable standards.

Officers consider that given the size of the site a satisfactory level of parking could be 
achieved within each individual plot without parking on the carriageway. 

Flood Risk and Drainage

The application is accompanied by a ‘Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy’ 
which evaluates the potential for flood risk either affecting the proposed development or 
existing land and buildings. The FRA confirms that the site is within Flood Zone 1 and is 
therefore at the lowest risk of flooding

Page 73



Existing run-off rates would be maintained within the proposed system. The foul drainage 
is proposed to be disposed via connection to the existing main sewers.
 
It is considered that an acceptable scheme of drainage for the site drainage could be 
achieved, with the developer submitting detailed surface water design with the detailed 
planning application. 

United Utilities and the Local Lead Flood Authority have considered the proposal and do 
not object to the development of the site with the drainage controlled through the 
imposition of planning conditions.

Affordable Dwellings

Policy S8 requires 25% affordable housing outside of Key Service Centres on 
developments of 5 or more dwellings or 0.15 hectares of land. The tenure split should be 
75% social rented and 25% intermediate affordable units.  

The applicant has confirmed they are committed to delivering 25% affordable housing 
and the required tenure split; this will be secured via a planning obligation. The proposal 
is considered to comply with policy S8.

Amenity/Open Space  Areas

The Allerdale Local Plan outlines that a development of this size should provide open 
space within the site.  The amount of space would be established within the reserved 
matters when the layout is considered.  The maintenance of the open space area can be 
secured by condition.

Wildlife

A phase 1 ecological survey and bat survey has been submitted to support the 
application; the site has not been identified as been within a sensitive area for wildlife.  A 
bat survey has found a small bat roost within the existing dwelling however it is proposed 
that this dwelling is to be retained.  A suitable mitigation strategy could be secured by 
condition to ensure protected species were not harmed by any aspect of redevelopment 
of the site.

Contamination

A phase 1 report has identified that a phase 2 reports should be undertaken, the council’s 
environmental health department have not objected subject the investigation being 
carried out to establish the degree and nature of the contamination and it’s potential to 
pollute the environment or cause harm to human health. The scope of works for the site 
investigations should be agreed with the Local Planning Authority prior to their 
commencement which could be dealt with by condition.

Other Issues:

The proposal is not considered to affect the amenity of any nearby properties in terms of 

Page 74



loss of amenity or overlooking.

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) the 
proposal would attract ‘New Homes Bonus’ and future council tax receipts. A S106 would 
also require the delivery of 25% local affordable units on site.  There would be a loss in 
business rates revenue if the application was approved.

Conclusion

The development is contrary to Policies S6f, S12 and DM3 of the Local Plan regarding 
the loss of employment land and the core principles of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.   The benefits of enhancing the visual amenity of the area are not considered 
to outweigh the harm of the loss of the employment land and therefore the council 
recommends that the application is refused.

Page 75



Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. In the absence of satisfactory marketing evidence and sequential 
assessment of alternative uses , the proposed development would result 
in the detrimental loss of an existing saved allocated and operational 
employment site which contributes to local employment provision where 
alternative employment opportunities are limited. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to Policies, S12, S6f and DM3 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan, Adopted July 2014 (Part 1) and para 17,18, 19 and 22 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

Proactive Statement

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with the Applicant.  However, 
the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been possible to negotiate a 
satisfactory way forward and due to the harm which has been clearly identified within the 
reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not been possible.

Page 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



Allerdale Borough Council

Planning Application 2/2017/0657
 

Reference No: 2/2017/0291 
Valid Date: 08/06/2017
Location: Fair View

Winscales Road
Winscales
Workington

Applicant: Mr John Wedgwood
C/O  Swarbrick Associates

Drawing Numbers: 1688-02C Block Plan;
1688-03B Plot 1 Floor Plans;
1688-04B Plot 1 Elevations;
1688-05B Plot 2 Floor Plans;
1688-06B Plot 2 Elevations; Drawing 04 Planting plan and 
landscape note; Drawing 05 Plant specification & Schedule

Proposed 
Development:

Construction of two new dwellinghouses

Recommendation: APPROVE 

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Principle of 
development

The principle of the development of two dwellings has been 
established through a previous grant of planning permission which 
remains extant although it should be noted the dwellings are larger 
than those previously permitted. 

Visual and 
Landscape impact

An off site planting scheme is proposed on land owned by the 
applicant which will help screen the proposed dwellings and 
integrate them into the landscape.

Highways and 
Parking

There are no objections from a highway point of view subject to a 
condition requiring any access gates should open away from the 
highway.

Contamination Environmental Protection advise that conditions should be 
attached to any planning approval.

Drainage United Utilities advise that conditions should be attached to any 
planning approval.

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



Proposal

This is a ‘Full’ planning application for the erection of two dwellings on the site where the 
property Fair View and workshops were previously located.  The previous buildings that 
were located on the site have now been demolished.

Planning History

The site benefits from an extant ‘outline’ approval with all matters reserved for two 
dwellings to replace the original dwelling ‘Fairview’ and workshops.  This application was 
approved at Development Panel subject to conditions (Ref 2/2015/0761).

Following the approval of the above application a further ‘outline’ application was 
submitted (Ref 2/2016/2016) for the erection of 4 dwellings.  This application was 
refused. 

Site

The site circumstances have changed from the previous applications in that the original 
dwelling ‘Fairview’ and the range of associated outbuildings have been demolished 
although this is not relevant to the consideration of this planning application. 

A kennels business and pet crematorium are located adjacent to the site with an 
associated dwelling that has restricted occupancy and a number of buildings.

The site is beyond the settlement limit of Workington and in open countryside with an 
open aspect to the east.  The setting is rural in nature with a landscape background of 
the National Park fells.

Individual properties and small dispersed groups of buildings are located in the 
surrounding area.  

Relevant Policies

NPPF

Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Requiring good design
Promoting healthy communities

Allerdale Local Plan Part 1 Adopted 2014

Policy DM14 - Standards of Good Design

Page 80



Policy S1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S29 - Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage
Policy S3 - Spatial Strategy and Growth
Policy S30 - Reuse of Land
Policy S31 - Reuse of rural buildings and replacement of dwellings in the countryside
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity
Policy S33 - Landscape
Policy S4 - Design principles
Policy S5 - Development Principles
Policy S7 - A mixed and balanced housing market  
Representations

Highways Authority – No objections to the proposal from a highway point of view subject 
to a condition requiring that access gates, if provided, shall be hung to open inwards only 
away from the highway. 

Coal Authority – The site does not fall within the defined Development High Risk Area.  

Environmental Health – Recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning 
approval regarding contamination. 

Crime prevention - Comment that it is evident that crime prevention has been considered 
as part of the design.

Highways England – No objection

United Utilities – Foul water should drain to the public sewer and surface water should 
drain in the most sustainable way.

Winscale’s Parish Council – Has no objections for the proposal for two new dwelling 
houses but the preference would be for one instead of two dwellings. 

Assessment

Outline planning permission has previously been granted for the development of two 
dwellings on this site to replace an existing dwelling and a collection of workshop 
buildings at the site.  Although planning policy would normally only have supported the 
development of a single dwelling it was considered that in this case two dwellings could 
be justified given the extent of built development at the site and the development as a 
whole could contribute to an enhancement of the site and its immediate setting. The 
principle of the development of two dwellings at the site is therefore established through 
this extant consent. 

The grant of outline planning permission was subject to a condition which sought to limit 
the footprint of the dwellings to the equivalent footprint of the buildings replaced. The 
reason given for this condition was to minimise the impact on the site and the 
surrounding landscape.  The footprint of the dwellings now proposed is significantly 

Page 81



larger than that permitted in the outline permission. As the current application has been 
submitted as a ‘full’ rather than a ‘reserved matters’ the condition attached to the outline 
permission is not binding although it nevertheless a material consideration. 

As the principle of the development of two dwellings is established through the extant 
planning permission, and taking into account the rationale for the condition seeking to 
restrict the footprint of the development, the main issue to consider is whether the scale 
and design of the dwellings now proposed is acceptable having regard to the impact of 
the development on the surrounding landscape. 

The dwellings proposed, and in particular that proposed for plot 1, are undoubtedly large 
but there are a number of large relatively isolated dwellings in the Winscales area so this 
is not unduly uncharacteristic. The design of the dwellings incorporates materials 
including render and natural slate which are characteristic of the wider area and are 
therefore considered to be appropriate. 

The applicant has made some minor amendments to the scheme initially submitted in 
relation to a reduction in the width of plot 1 and a re-siting and a reduction in the footprint 
of plot 2 which it is considered help to improve the appearance of the overall 
development and reduce the impact in the landscape.

To help screen the proposed development and integrate the new dwellings into the 
landscape the applicant has put forward a landscaping plan for land outside the 
application site, but within his ownership. This includes what is described as three 
‘horizons’ of planting  comprising:

- tree and hedgerow planting immediately around the houses and gardens;
- tree planting in arc within field;
- tree planting in belt along edge of A595

The planting proposed will comprise native mixed tree planting which will support 
enhanced viability as helping to screen views of the site. Whilst the site is visible from the 
A595 it is set at a lower level and it is considered that the new tree and hedgerow 
planting proposed will help to mitigate the impact of the development. 

Highways and access

The highway authority has no objection to the proposed development subject to a 
condition that no gates overhang the adopted highway. 

Drainage

United Utilities have no objection to the development subject to the site being drained on 
a separate system with found water draining to the public sewer and surface water 
draining in the most sustainable way. It is proposed however that an existing septic tank 
be utilised which is the arrangement approved in the extant approval subject to a 
condition requiring that the capacity of the septic tank be demonstrated and an 
alternative put forward if necessary. A duplication of this condition is therefore considered 
to be appropriate. The Lead Local Flood Authority also comment that surface water 
drainage arrangements will need to be conditioned to ensure an appropriate scheme is 

Page 82



agreed. 

Contamination

As with the extant outline planning permission the Environmental Protection Team have 
no objection to the proposed development subject to conditions requiring the submission 
and approval of a desktop study and preliminary risk assessment and if necessary an 
appropriate remediation scheme.

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act the proposal will 
contribute to the award of New Homes Bonus and additional council tax receipts.
Conclusion

On balance, whilst the dwellings now proposed have a larger footprint and greater visual 
impact than that previously permitted through the extant planning permission, it is 
considered that taking into account the enhanced screening and landscaping proposed 
the development would not have an unacceptable impact on the surrounding landscape. 
It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following 
conditions:

Annex 1

Conditions/Reasons

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of the permission. 
Reason: In order to comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in accordance 
with the following plans: 

1688-02C Block Plan
1688-03B Plot 1 Floor Plans
1688-04B Plot 1 Elevations
1688-05B Plot 2 Floor Plans
1688-06B Plot 2 Elevations 
Drawing 04 Planting plan and landscape note
Drawing 05 Plant specification & Schedule

Reason: In order that the development is carried out in complete accordance with 
the approved plans and any material and non material alterations to the scheme 
are properly considered.

3. The approved landscaping scheme (Drawing 04 Planting plan and landscape 

Page 83



note; Drawing 05 Plant specification & Schedule) shall be carried out in the 
first planting season following the commencement of the development and 
any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion 
of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: In order to enhance the appearance of the development and minimise the 
impact of the development in the locality.

4. Access gates, if provided, shall be hung to open inwards only away from the 
highway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety

5. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage 
scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site 
conditions(inclusive of how the scheme shall be managed after completion) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) 
or any subsequent replacement national standards. In the event of surface 
water draining to the public surface water sewer, the pass forward flow rate to 
the public surface water sewer should be restricted to existing greenfield 
runoff for any storm event.

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution.

6. Before development commences full details of the siting and capacity of the 
existing private septic shall be submitted to the Local Plannimng Authority 
and approved in writing. Alternatively details of other appropriate means of 
foul drainage shall be provided and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of foul water drainage and minimise the 
risk of flooding in compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policies S29 and S2 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

7. No development approved by this permission shall commence until a desktop 
study has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
Should the preliminary risk assessment identify any potential contamination 
which may affect human health, controlled waters or the wider environment, 
all necessary site investigation works within the site boundary must be carried 
out to establish the degree and nature of the contamination and its potential to 
pollute the environment or cause harm to human health. The scope of works 
for the site investigations should be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 

Page 84



prior to their commencement.

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising from any 
possible contamination from the development to the local environment, in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014

8. Should land affected by contamination be identified under the desk top study 
under condition 7 be found which poses unacceptable risks to human health, 
controlled waters or the wider environment, no development shall take place 
until a detailed remediation scheme has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an 
appraisal of remediation options, identification of the preferred option(s), the 
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, and a description 
and programme of the works to be undertaken including the verification plan.

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising from any 
possible contamination from the development to the local environment, in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014

9. Should a contamination remediation scheme be required under condition 8 the 
approved strategy shall be implemented and a verification report submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the 
development (or relevant phase of development) being brought into use.

Reason: To minimise any risk during or post construction works arising from any 
possible contamination from the development to the local environment, in 
compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the 
Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 2014.

10. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the 
site affected must be halted and a risk assessment carried out and submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where 
unacceptable risks are found remediation and verification schemes shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
shall be implemented prior to the development (or relevant phase of 
development) being brought into use. All works shall be undertaken in 
accordance with current UK guidance, particularly CLR11.

Reason: To minimise any risk arising from any possible contamination from the 
development to the local environment in compliance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy S30 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1), Adopted July 
2014.

11. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) no buildings, structures, 
extensions, fences, gates, walls or other means of enclosure shall be erected 

Page 85



within the curtilage of any dwelling without the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority upon an application submitted to it. 

Reason: The Local Planning Authority wishes to retain control over any proposed 
alterations/extensions in the interests of the appearance of the site.

Proactive Statement

Application Approved Following Revisions

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern within the application (as originally submitted) and where appropriate 
negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments and solutions to the proposal to 
address those concerns.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant 
planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

Notes to Applicant:

You must not commence works, or allow any person to perform works, on any part of the 
highway until receipt of an appropriate permit allowing such works. Enquiries should be 
made to Cumbria Highways, Highways Depot, Joseph Noble Road, Lillyhall Industrial 
Estate, Workington, CA14 4JH, Tel: 01946 506550

Should the watercourse  adjacent to the site be affected by the development in any way 
(including temporary works such as the erection of scaffolding), you will need to contact 
the Local Flood Risk Team for Ordinary Watercourse Consent via email 
(LFRM.consent@cumbria.gov.uk). 

 

Page 86



P
age 87



P
age 88



Allerdale Borough Council 
Planning Application HOU/2017/0056

Proposed 
Development:

Replacement of front and rear doors with flood resistance doors

Location: 38
Challoner Street
Cockermouth

Applicant: Mr Nigel Clark

Recommendation: REFUSE

Summary/Key Issues

Issue Conclusion

Proposal The proposed front door is not of an appropriate design for the 
Conservation Area. The benefits offered in terms of the flood 
protection measures of the door do not offset the harm the 
proposal would have on the setting of the Conservation Area. 

Site

The development site comprises a two storey mid terraced dwelling situated in the town 
of Cockermouth and within the towns Conservation Area. 

The dwelling has a timber half glazed door to the front, set in a painted surround. The 
rear door is also of a timber finish.

Proposal

The proposal is to replace both the front and back doors with flood resistant doors.

Relevant Policies

National Planning Policy Framework
Chapter 12 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Chapter 7 - Requiring good design

Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) July 2014
Policy DM15 - Extensions and alterations to existing buildings and properties
Policy S2 - Sustainable development principles
Policy S4- Design Principles
Policy S27 - Heritage Assets
Policy S32 - Safeguarding amenity  

Page 89

Agenda Item 10



Relevant Planning History

2/2014/0440 – Installation of rear access door at 38 Challoner Street, Cockermouth – 
Approved 13/08/14

2/2010/0567 – Formation of doorway into rear yard at 38 Challoner Street, Cockermouth 
– Approved 24/08/10

2/2010/0140 – Replace and repair using existing slates, new lead flashing and replace 
existing rooflight. Replace ground floor window with two sliding sash windows and render 
front elevation at 38 Challoner Street, Cockermouth  - Approved 26/03/10

Representations

Town Council – Recommend approval

Highways – No objections

Cockermouth Civic Trust – Suggest a holding objection pending further information. If the 
proposal relates to a typical white uPVC door to the front this would cause measureable 
harm to the property and the street scene.

The application has been advertised on site and in the press. Neighbouring properties 
have been notified. No resulting representations have been received to date.

Assessment

Challoner Street is a particularly characterful narrow street accessible via Cockermouth’s 
Main Street. Much of the street has retained a traditional palette of materials and design 
in terms of the front doors and windows. These features have helped retain the historic 
architectural feel of Challoner Street, which in turn contributes significantly to the value of 
the Conservation Area.

The applicant’s proposal would involve the replacement of the existing front door with a 
door of similar styling, in a modern composite material. The door would incorporate 
patterned glazing within the upper glazed panel. The applicant suggests within the 
application that a four panelled door is proposed to the rear. This would incorporate 
glazed panels within the upper two panels. Further details have not been provided 
beyond this. However, the design of this door is considered less sensitive than the 
proposed door to the front of the dwelling due to the less prominent position and minimal 
impact upon the setting of the Conservation Area. The main consideration of the 
application is therefore the impact of the proposed front door on the visual amenity and 
character of the property, street scene of Challoner Street and Cockermouth’s 
Conservation Area.

Planning Policies S2, S27, S32 and DM15 of the Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) July 2014 
are applicable to the application. These policies all support development which makes a 

Page 90



positive contribution to the local area and which enhances historic assets and distinctive 
character. Planning Policy S27 is particularly relevant in indicating that ‘only proposals 
which do not harm any positive qualities of the heritage asset(s) will be approved, unless 
there is clear and convincing public benefits to the proposal that will outweigh the harm 
caused to the asset(s)’. 

In assessing planning applications the Council also has a duty under the provisions of 
S72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special 
attention to the desirability of preserving and enhancing the conservation area.

The submitted application details suggests the proposed replacement doors are flood 
resilient doors. The site is situated within Flood Zone 3 and has been subject to flooding 
in the past. It could therefore be argued that there are some public benefits in 
safeguarding the heritage asset (the dwelling) from flood damage. However, in line with 
current national planning policies, harm to any heritage asset can only be offset against 
public benefits which clearly outweigh the harm.

In this instance, the applicant proposes a black composite door with a single patterned 
glazed panel to the upper section and two panels below. Whilst this would appear to 
replicate the styling of the existing timber door, the patterned glazing proposed to the 
upper panels would not. The ornate modern design of the glazing is also not readily in 
evidence within Challoner Street or the wider Conservation Area and is considered a 
glazing pattern more suited to a modern building. With this in mind, it is Officers opinion 
that the proposed front door would cause significant harm to the character and setting of 
the application property, Challoner Street and Cockermouth’s Conservation Area. 

Further information relating to the design of the door has been provided within the course 
of the application by the door supplier. Requests have been made that the door design 
be amended with particular reference to the glazed panel within the upper section. The 
Officer has been advised that amendments are not possible as the door has already 
been manufactured. Likewise, the manufactured door cannot now be altered.

Local Financial Considerations

Having regard to S70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act the proposal would not 
result in any local financial benefits. 

Conclusion

The loss of the existing timber front door may be acceptable in favour of a composite 
door offering improved flood resilience for the property. In line with current planning 
policy, any harm, such as the loss of a traditional material could be offset against clear 
and convincing public benefits.

In this instance, the proposed front door is not of a design which is commonly evident 
within the Conservation Area and is not in keeping with the existing character and range 
of traditional doors within Challoner Street. Whilst it is accepted that a composite flood 
door would offers benefits in terms of flood protection, this would not offset the harm 
caused by the proposed door design and in particular the ornate glazing panel proposed 

Page 91



within the upper section.

The proposal is therefore considered contrary to Chapter 7 and 12 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policies S2, S27, S32 and DM15 of the Allerdale Local 
Plan (Part 1) July 2014. The application is recommended for refusal. 

Page 92



Annex 1

Reasons for Refusal

The design details of the proposed front door would have an adverse visual impact 
upon the special character and setting of its locality within Cockermouth 
Conservation Area, without any demonstrated public benefits which would outweigh 
this harm. The proposal is therefore contrary to Chapters 7 and 12 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework ad Policies S2, S4, S27, S32 and DM15 of the Allerdale 
Local Plan (Part 1) July 2014.

Proactive Statement

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying planning policies, constraints, stakeholder representations and 
matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with the Applicant.  
Unfortunately, it has not been possible to resolve all those matters within the timescale 
allocated for the determination of this planning application.  However, the Local Planning 
Authority has clearly set out within its report, the outstanding matters needing to be 
remedied to address the harm identified within the reasons for refusal– which may 
potentially lead to the submission of a more acceptable proposal in the future.  The Local 
Planning Authority is willing to provide pre-application advice in respect of any future 
application for a revised development.  

Page 93



Location plan

P
age 94



Location plan showing larger area

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 96


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Tuesday 25 July 2017 of Development Panel
	5 2/2017/0255 - Land at New Bridge Road, Workington - Erection of pub/restaurant (Class A3/A4) with associated living accommodation, car parking and landscaping, new access road, temporary site access and compound
	6 2/2017/0283 - Moorhouse, Greengill, Aspatria - Change of use to provide camping site - Retrospective
	7 2/2017/0365 - Mill Barn, Wiggonby - Proposed affordable dwelling
	8 2/2017/0005 - Grahams Garage, Prospect - Demolition of commercial buildings and residential development of up to 20 dwellings - Resubmission of application 2/2016/0059
	9 2/2017/0291 - Fair View, Winscales - Construction of two new dwellinghouses
	10 HOU/2017/0056 - Replacement of front and rear doors with flood resistance doors - 38 Challoner Street, Cockermouth

